25500 Gibraltar Rd.
Flat Rock M1 48134

December 19, 2011




10.

11.

12.

13.

City of Flat Rock

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA
Monday, December 19, 2011 - 7:30 P.M.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL OF COUNCIL MEMBERS:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
a. Reguiar Council Minutes of December 5, 2011
b. Special Council Minutes of December 12, 2011

Presentation of Plague to Council Member Eric Painter.

Christmas Decorating Contest Wards by Representative from DTE
and the Flat Rock Beautification Commission.

CITIZENS TO BE HEARD:

REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS:

REPORTS FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS:

MAYOR’S COMMENTS:

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
a. City of Detroit Water Service Contract.
b. Payment #2 for Pavement Repairs at Water Breaks.

NEW BUSINESS:
a. Annual Report June 30, 2011.
b. Amendment to Zoning Ordinance/Bed and Breakfast Uses.

.¢. Amendment to TIFA By-Laws.

d. Request from Fire Chief to Bid Grant ltems

CORRESPONDENCE:
a. Letter of Resignation from Walter Masson, Historical Commission

ADJOURNMENT:




REGULAR COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS
CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
MONDAY, DECEMBER 05, 2011

The regular meeting of the Flat Rock City Council convened at the Municipal Building
on the above date at 7:30 p.m.

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. PRESENT ON ROLL CALL: Mayor Dropiewski, Council Members
Gagne, Martin, Painter, Wrobel and Moore.

ABSENT: Council Member Tefend.

12-05-01 Motion by Painter supported by Wrobel to excuse absent member
Tefend.
All present voting yes. Motion carried unanimously.

ALSO PRESENT: DPS Director Hammond, Economic Director Mans,
Attorney Grunow, Fire Chief/Building Director Vack, Recreation Director Pawlukiewicz,
Police Chief Rossow, Treasurer Lambrix and Clerk Butski.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

12-05-02 Motion by Gagne supported by Martin to approve the regular minutes
of November 21, 2011 as presented.

All present voting yes. Motion carried unanimously.
4, CITIZENS TO BE HEARD:

Sue Farrar of the Beautification Commission thanked the DPS Department and
City Hall staff for quickly preparing City Hall for Santa Comes to Flat Rock. It was
moved from the warming center due to flooding. 130 children were seen by Santa. Also,
Santa’s mailbox will be at the Library until noon December 15" On December 16™ the
judges will tour Flat Rock looking for the best Christmas decorations. You don’t have to
enter and the winners will be announced at the Council Meeting on December io™

Gary Borden stated that DTE is offering a rebate to anyone wanting their furnace
cleaned or tuned up. The info will be given to the City Clerk to put on cable.

. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS:

George Mans gave an update on the progress of the engineering building on
Cahill Road which will open as a Veterinary Office the first of the year.

Chief Rossow announced there is a drop box in the police department for Marine
Corp Toys For Tots until December 13%.



Bruce Hammond, DPS Director, gave a report on the flooding in the city
November 29 and 30" due to the excess rain, He stated there is a technical meeting
with the South Huron Valley Authority to discuss the issue. Also, Tuesday, December 6"
is the deadline for proposals to repair the broken water line at the railroad tracks on
Vreeland Road.

6. REPORTS FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Council Member Wrobel and Mayor complimented the DPS for a job well done
during the flooding. .

7. MAYOR’S COMMENTS:

Mayor Dropiewski complimented the Beautification Commission for a successful
Santa Comes to Flat Rock. He thanked the Recreation staff for Breakfast with Santa and
said there is limited seating left for the Senior Luncheon Thursday.

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

Ttem A — Public Hearing: Meadows Rear Yard Drainage Improvements Special
Assessment Roll.

12-05-03 | Motion by Wrobel supported by Martin to open the public hearing at
7:53 pm, '

The residents asked when the work would begin and was told early spring. They
then asked to be contacted by the contractors before the work starts with a cost to tie into
the sewer if they wish to. The residents were thankful the work is finally going to be
done.

All present voting yes. Motion carried unanimously.

12-05-04] Motion by Martin supported by Painter to close the Public Hearing at
7.55 pm.
All present voting yes. Motion carried unanimously.

Motion by Wrobel supported by Moore to approve the following
Resolution as presented:
RESOLUTION
CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHGAN

WHEREAS, the City Council has declared its intention to proceed to construct a
public improvement to install rear yard drainage improvements for certain property along
Meadows Avenue, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to such intention, the Council created Special Assessment
District No. 27 to include such property as more specifically described in the attached
Exhibit, and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was scheduled to hear objections to such public
improvement, held on this date, with notice of same being given pursuant to Chapter 11
of the City Charter;



NOW, THEREFORE, BE I'T RESOLVED that the Council hereby confirms the
Special Assessment Roll filed by the City Assessor.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk shall endorse thereon the date
of the confirmation, and the same shall be final and conclusive as provided by Charter.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the special assessments in Special
Assessment Roll No. 27 shall be payable in one (1) equal annual installment.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the first installment shall be due on or before
the 1% day of July, 2012, and subsequent installments due in intervals of twelve (12)
months from the due date of the first payment. Further that all unpaid installments shall
bear interest, payable annually, at the rate of interest of -0- percent per annum.

All present voting yes. Motion carried unanimously.

9. NEW BUSINESS:

Item A — Request from employee to purchase time for retirement.

Discussion. The Treasurer stated it would cost the employee approximately
$20,000.00

12-05-06; Motion by Wrobel supported by Moore to approve the request subject
to the COAM approval.
All present voting yes. Motion carried unanimously.

10. CORRESPONDENCE:

Item A — Letter of resignation from Planning Commission Member Frank
Acquaro effective 12/31/11.

Item B — Zoning Board minutes of September 12, 2011.

Item C — Planning Commission minutes of September 26, 2011.

Item D — Letter of resignation from Planning Commission member Gary Borden
effective 12/31/11.

11. LATE CORRESPONDENCE:

Item A — Annual dues to the Southern Wayne County Regional Chamber.

12-05-07; Motion by Painter supported by Gagne to pay the invoice in the amount
of $309.00.
All present voting yes. Motion carried unanimously.

12-05- 08 Motion by Martin supported by Gagne to go into Closed Session at
8:00 pm.
All present voting yes. Motion carried unantmously.

Mayor called a five (5) minute recess.

12-05-09) Motion by Gagne supported by Martin to return to Open Session at
8:23 pm.,
All present voting yes. Motion carried unanimously.



12. ADJOURNMENT:

12-05-10, Motion by Gagne supported by Wrobel to adjourn the regular meeting
at 8:25 pm.
All present voting yes. Motion carried unanimously.

JONATHAN D. DROPIEWSKI, MAYOR

LORENE BUTSKI, CMC, CITY CLERK

DATE:
APPROVED



SPECIAL COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS
CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
MONDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2011

The special meeting of the Flat Rock City Council convened at the Municipal building on
the above date at 7:00 p.m.

PRESENT: Mayor Dropiewski, Council Members Gagne, Martin, and Moore.

ALSO PRESENT: DPS Director Hammond, Treasurer Lambrix, and City Attorney

Grunow

ABSENT: Council Members Wrobel, Tefend and Painter

DPS Director Hammond discussed the quotes received for the fiberglass lining of the
water line on Vreeland Road. The quotes received exceeded the estimates by approximately
$100,000. He stated the high quotes are a result of the time of year. The companies that
perform this type of work have stopped operations for the winter and would have to bring back
their crew just for this project, raising their administrative expenses. The recommendation of
Mr. Hammond and the city engineer is to reject the quotes presented.

Mr. Hammond recommended that the project specifications be revised to use a jack-and-
bore method to by-pass the damaged water line. He explained that a steel sleeve would be
placed next to the damaged section which would allow placement of a new line inside. By
installing this sleeve any future expansion or repairs would be easier., He requested to obtain
quotes within approximately two weeks with a start date by the beginning of January, which he
believes will be closer to the $150,000 estimate.

12-12-01] Motion by Martin, supported by Gagne to reject the two guotes received.
Motion carried unanmimously.

12-12-02 Motion by Martin, supported by Moore to approve the DPS Director to pursue
estimates for the jack-and-bore installation. Motion carried unanimously.

ADJOURNMENT"

12-12-03] Motion by Gagne, supported by Martin to adjourn at 7:10 p.m.

JONATHAN D. DROPTEWSKI, MAYOR

DEBRA LAMBRIX, TREASURER
Date:
Approved
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ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS

26342 Gibraltar Road

Flat Rock , Michigan 48134-1597
Telephone 734-782-3277
Facsimile 734-782-2424

UNFINISHED BUSINESS - A
REGULAR COUNCIL MTG.
12-19-11

David P. Grunow
Matthew A. Zick, Of Counsel

December 8, 2011

Mayor and Council
City of Flat Rock
25500 Gibraltar Road
Flat Rock, MI 48134

Re: City of Detroit Water Service Contract
Our File No. 07-4611

Dear Mayor and Council:

Attached please find Amendment No. 1 to the Water Service Contract with the City of Detroit. 1have
reviewed the Amendment and approve the Amendment as to form. One significant change in the
contract is the reduction of the Projected Annual Volume and Minimum Annual Volume for the fiscal
years ending 2013 and 2014, most notably, a reduction of the Projected Annual Volume from 68,000
to 67,000 Mcf. As the result of this Amendment, this is projected to reduce rates from $9.50 per Mef
to $8.84 per Mcf.

As you may recall, the Council appointed myself, Mr. Hammond, and the City Engineer to discuss
with the City of Detroit the attached Amendment and importantly, a review of the future water usage
of the City during the next three years. As noted above, the prior Projected Annual Volume was set
at 68,000 Mcf. From a review of historical usage of the City, there would be some support fora
reduced Projected Annual Volume of 66,000. This would result in a projected rate of $8.13 per Mcf.
The committee, recognizing the anticipated adding of a second shift at AAL has taken a conservative
approach recommending the use of the Projected Annual Volume of 67,000 Mcf.

It is the committee’s recommendation that the City Council approve Amendment No. 1 as attached.
Tf you have any questions, please feel free to contact either myself or Mr. Hammond.
Very truly yours,

GRUNOW & ASSOCIATES#LLC

< o~

.
e S
David P. GruﬂOW,“QEf ttorney

DPG/rt
Attachment



AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO WATER SERVICE CONTRACT
BETWEEN
CITY OF DETROIT
AND
CITY OF FLAT ROCK

This Amendment Agreement No. 1 (“Amendment”) is made between the City of Detroit,
a municipal corporation, by its Water and Sewerage Department and Board of Water
Commissioners (the “Board’), and the City of Flat Rock, 2 municipal corporation (“Customer”).
The Board and Customer are collectively referred to as the “Parties”.

Whereas, the City of Detroit owns a public water supply system (“System”) operated by
the Board; and

‘Whereas, on May 4, 2010, the Parties entered into a Water Service Contract (“Contract”)
reflecting the terms and conditions governing the delivery and purchase of potable water; and

Whereas, the purpose of the Contract is to provide for the long-term service of potable
water to Customer; and

Whereas, Article 15 of the Contract permits the Parties to amend the Contract by mutual
agreement; and :

Whereas, it is the mutual desire of the Parties to enter into this Amendment to amend the
Contract as set out in detail in the following sections; and

ACCORDINGLY, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:
L. Section 1.01 of the Contract is amended only to add the following definition:

“Allocation Flow Rate” shall mean the value that is established as a result of a breach of
Section 5.03 herein and which value shall replace the contractual Maximum Flow Rate n
the rate calculation process in the event that Section 5.04(C) herein is applied by the
Board.

2. Article 5 of the Contract is amended by deleting in its entirety the existing Article 5 and
substituting the following revised Article 5 in its place:

7 Article 5.
Pressure; Maximum Flow Rate; Minimum Annual Volume

501 Pressure Range. The Board shall use its best efforts to deliver water at the Water
Distribution Points at a pressure range (“Pressure Range”) adequate to meet the
reasonable requirements of Customer. For purposes of evaluating this effort,
water pressure shall be determined by reviewing the average hourly pressure
measured from top-of-the-hour to top-of-the-hour (e.g. 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 am.).
The Pressure Range to be provided by the Board to Customer’s Water

{GADOCSWCONTRACT \hohwhadl 000\ contracthl-H3112.DOC}



5.02

5.03

Distribution Points is specified in Exhibit B. The location at which the water
pressure will be measured shall be specified in Exhibit A and identified as point
“p” A Pressure Range will not be established for water meters that are not
located on a DWSD transmission main, or which are located on a DWSD
transmission main and are downstream of and subject to the tlow demands of a
water meter for another Board custorer.

Remedy for Non-Compliance with Pressure Range. If the water pressure at
Customer’s Water Distribution Points is above or below the Pressure Range, at
Customer’s request the Parties shall meet within thirty (30) calendar days to
discuss the reasons for the non-compliance and, if agreed necessary, develop and
implement a mutually agreeable written corrective action plan within sixty (60)
calendar days of the meeting, or as otherwise agreed. The corrective action plan
shall include a timetable for resolution of the non-compliance issue(s).

Al Tf it is determined that another customer’s exceedance of the rates of flow
established by that customer’s Maximum Flow Rate caused or contributed
to the Board’s inability to meet its Pressure Range agreement with
Customer, then the corrective action plan shall provide for the resolution
of the issue.

B. If Customer is exceeding the rates of flow established by its Maximum
Flow Rate on a day other than the DWSD Maximum Day at the time
('ustomer experiences a variation from the Pressure Range, then the Board
shall be relieved from its obligation to provide water to Customer within
the Pressure Range for that period of time during which Customer is

~ exceeding the rates of flow established by its Maximum Flow Rate.

Maximum Flow Rate. Customer’s Maximum Flow Rate is specified in Exhibit B.
Customer shall not exceed the Maximum Flow Rate specified in Exhibit B, as
measured in million gallons on the DWSD Maximum Day and during the DWSD
Peak Hour.

A. The Board shall notify all customers in writing on or before October 1 of
cach calendar year if Customer or any other wholesale customer is alleged
to have exceeded its Maximum Flow Rate in a given calendar year. The
notice shall state the day and/or hour that Customer or any other wholesale
water customer is alleged to have exceeded its Maximum Flow Rate.

B. if Customer is alleged to be in breach of its obligations under this Section
5.03, the Board and Customer shall endeavor to meet before November 1
of the then current calendar year, or as soon as practicable, for the
purposes of validating the breach, reviewing and analyzing the causes, and
to negotiate a possible remedy pursuant 1o Sections 5.04 and 5.05 herein.

C. The Technical Advisory Committee’s Analytical Work Group, or its
successor shall review any alleged breach of this Section 5.03.



5.04

1. The Analytical Work Group shall meet once, at a minimum, on or
before November 1 of each calendar year to review the alleged
breaches, if any, and may thereafter schedule subsequent meetings
as necessary to conclude its review.

i, The Board will seek a recommendation from the Analytical Work
Group on (1) an Allocation Flow Rate, if any, and/or (2)
concurrence with the remedy tentatively negotiated between

“Customer and the Board, if any.  Customer and the Board shall
have the right to present any information related to the alleged
breach a Party deems necessary to the deliberations.

1ii. Any recommendation submitted by the Analytical Work Group
shall be received by the Board on or before December 1 of each
calendar year.

Remedy for Non-Compliance with Maximum Flow Rate. The Board has no

obligation to supply to Customer more than the Maximum Flow Rate. If
Customer exceeds its Maximum Flow Rate on the DWSD Maximum Day or
during the DWSD Peak Hour, the Board and Customer may, as needed, take one
or more of the following actions set forth in this Section 5.04. The applicability
of any particular action shall be evaluated by the Board on a case-by-case basis.

A.

The Board may require that-Customer take all reasonable steps to reduce
its consumption to the Maximum Flow Rate. Such steps may include
water conservation measures, outdoor water use trestrictions, water 1oss
studies and remediation, and an internal system operation evaluation.

The Parties may meet to negotiate a new Maximum Flow Rate. If so
negotiated, Customer shall pay the rate associated with the new Maximum
Flow Rate in the subsequent rate year.

For ratemaking and cost allocation purposes only, the Board may
recalculate Customer’s rate for the current and/or subsequent fiscal years
utilizing a revised cost allocation formula as follows:

1. The Board shall, as set forth below, establish an Allocation Flow
Rate to replace the contractual Maximum Flow Rate in the rate
calculation process.

ii. The Allocation Flow Rate shall be applied from no earlier than the
first exceedance date forward.

1ii. The Allocation Flow Rate will be at least equal to the flow rate
demonstrated by Customer on the DWSD Maximum Day, and may
be higher than the actual flow rate demonstrated by Customer.



5.05

iv.

Vi,

vii.

Viil.

Pursuant to Section 5.03(C), if the Board receives a
recommendation on the Allocation Flow Rate to be applied from
the Analytical Work Group and the recommendation is higher than
twice the amount by which the demonstrated flow rate exceeded
the original Maximum Flow Rate, then the Board shall be limited
to establishing an Allocation Flow Rate that is at Jeast equal to the
flow rate demonstrated by Customer on the DWSD Maximum Day
and no higher than the recommendation provided by the Analytical
Work Group.

Tf no recommendation on the Allocation Flow Rate to be applied is
received by the Board, or if the Board receives 2 recommendation
and the tecommendation is less than twice the amount by which
the demonstrated flow rate exceeded the original Maximum Flow
Rate, then the Board shall be limited to establishing an Allocation
Flow Rate that is at least equal to the flow rate demonstrated by
Customer on the DWSD Maximum Day and no higher than twice
the amount by which the demonstrated flow rate exceeded the
original Maximum Flow Rate.

The Allocation Flow Rate will continue to be applied to each
subsequent year’s rate calculation process until the Maximum
Flow Rate is renegotiated.

If a rate has been.approved for the subsequent fiscal year (July 1*
to Tune 30™) but the rate has not yet been applied, the Board may
modify Customer’s:rate for that subsequent fiscal year to account
for an exceedance of its Maximum Flow Rate.

Tf the Board has built capital facilities based upon Customer’s
negotiated Maximum Flow Rate and Customer consistently
exceeds its Maximum Flow Rate, then the Board may re-calculate
the amount of Customer’s percentage of the capital cost of such
facilities

Procedure for Non-Compliance with Maximum Flow Rate. In addition to the

remedies specified in Section 5.04, if Customer has failed in its obligations under
Section 5.03, the Parties shall meet to discuss the reasons for the non-compliance
and if agreed necessary, develop a mutually agreeable written corrective action

plan by

December 31 of the year in which the non-compliance occurred, or as

otherwise agreed. Any comrective action plan required under this Section 5.05
shall include a timetable for resolution of the non-compliance issue(s).

Al

If the Parties determine that a corrective action plan is not required and an
incident of non-compliance occurs in the subsequent calendar year, the
Parties shall meet to develop a mutually agreeable written corrective
action plan by December 31 of the year in which the non-compliance
occurred, or as otherwise agreed.



5.06

5.07

5.08

B. In the event the reason for Customer’s non-compliance under Section 5.03
is due to a Customer water main break, fire or meter calibration performed
by DWSD, these events will be taken into consideration in defermining (1)
whether a corrective action plan is warranted and (2) the extent to which,
if any, the steps specified in Section 5.04 should apply.

Minimum Annual Volume. Customer shall purchase from the Board not less than
the Minimum Annual Volume of water specified in Exhibit B. If Customer’s
Annual Volume is less than the Minimum Annual Volume, Customer shall pay to
the Board an amount computed by applying the current rate to the Minimum
Annual Volume less any amounts already billed to the Customer by the Board.

Periodic Review. TFor Customer and System planning purposes and, with regard
to the Minimum Annual Volume, enforcement of the provisions of Article 3, a
Maximum Flow Rate, Pressure Range, Projected Annual Volume and Minimum
Annual Volume shall be established by mutual agreement for the Contract Term.
A contractually binding Maximum Flow Rate, Pressure Range, Projected Annual
Volume and Minimum Arnual Volume shall be established by mutual agreement
for first two years of the Contract Term. Not later than the second year of the
Contract Term, the Board and Customer shall negotiate a contractually binding
Maximum Flow Rate, Pressure Range, Projected Annual Volume and Minimum
Annual Volume for the succeeding three years of the Contract Term. Not later
than the fifth year of the Contract Term, and every five years thereafter, the Board
and Customer shall negotiate a contractually binding Maximum Flow Rate,
Pressure Range, Projected Annual Velume and Minimum Annual Volume for the

succeeding five years of the Contract Term. - If the Parties do not negotiate new or

revised Maximum Flow Rates, Pressare Ranges, Projected Annual Volumes and
Minimum Annual Volumes according to the aforementioned schedule, then the
figures established for planning purposes (as shown in italicized type in Exhibit
1) shall become contractually binding for the then-current three or five year term.

Remedy for Excessive Rate(s) of Flow Causing Pressure Problem(s). Customer
acknowledges that Customer’s rates of flow may cause and/or contribute to the
Board’s inability to meet its Pressure Range agreements with Customer and/or the
Board’s other customers (hereinafter, “Pressure Problem™). The Board may
review or monitor Customer’s daily rates of flow if a Pressure Problem occurs
and the Board’s Pressure Range agreement with Customer and/or another
customer of the Board is alleged to have been breached. The approximate rate of
flow by individual meter location used to establish the Pressure Range and
Maximum Flow Rate is specified in Exhibit B. If a Pressure Problem occurs, the
Parties shall meet to discuss the reasons for the Pressure Problem and develop and
implement a mutually agreeable written corrective action plan within sixty
calendar days of the Pressure Problem, or as otherwise agreed. The corrective
action plan may require one or both of the following steps: '




5.09

5.10

A. The Board may require that Customer take all reasonable steps to reduce
its consumption to the rate of flow established by the Maximum Flow
Rate. Such steps may include water conservation measures, outdoor water
use restrictions, water loss studies and remediation, and an internal system
operation evaluation. In addition, the Board may require that Customer
adjust its rate of flow at individual meters, including the establishment of a
not-to-exceed flow rate for individual meters. :

B. The Parties may meet to negotiate a new Maximum Flow Rate. If so
negotiated, Customer shall pay the rate associated with the new Maximumn
Flow Rate in the subsequent rate year.

If the Parties determine that a corrective action plan is not required and a
subsequent Pressure Problem occurs, the Parties shall meet to develop and
implement a mutually agreeable written corrective action plan within sixty
calendar days of the subsequent Pressure Problem, or as otherwise agreed. Any
corrective action plan required under this Section 5.08 shall include a timetable
for resolution of the Pressure Problem. In the event the reason for the Pressure
Problem is due to a Customer water main break, fire or meter calibration
performed by DWSD, these events will be taken into consideration in determining
(1) whether a corrective action plan is warranted and (2) the extent to which, if
any, the steps specified above in this Section 5.08 should apply.

Roard Costs for Corrective Action Plan. If at any time the Board is required
under the terms of this Article 5 to develop- and. implement a corrective action
plan and the plan involves incutring capitat-costs, the Board will determine
whether the costs will be charged as a System-cost er whether the cost will be
borne by a specific customer o CUStOMELS. If thé Board determines that all or part
of the costs should be bomne by a specific customer or customers, the Board will
seek a tecommendation from the Technical Advisory Committee on the
assessment of the costs.

Customer Costs for Corrective Action Plan. If at any time Customer is required
under the terms of this Article 5 to develop and implement a corrective action
plan, Customer shall be so informed in writing and Customer will pay all costs
related to the corrective action plan.

Section 21.01 of the Contract is amended by deleting in its entirety the existing language
and substituting the following language m its place:

The Board shall have the right to review and approve Customer’s construction plans for
Meter Facilities at new Water Distribution Points, water mains sized twenty-four inches
and larger, pump stations, reservoirs, water towers, and any other construction that will
cross, or be within close proximity to, or have influence upon the Board’s infrastructure.
The Board’s approval of construction plans shall be timely and shall not be unreasonably
withheld.



Section 22.01 of the Contract is amended by deleting in its entirety the existing language
and substituting the following language in its place: '

Prior to Customer’s operation of any new or existing water storage facility, Customer
shall seek the Board’s written approval of the filling schedule (“Filling Schedule™) of the
storage facility. The Board may periodically require Customer to change or adjust a
previously approved Filling Schedule. The Parties shall collaborate on devising a
mutually beneficial Filling Schedule. If the Parties arc unable to agree upon a Filling
Schedule, the Board’s determination of a Filling Schedule shall be final. All Filling
Schedules shall be for a period of six comsecutive hours. Customer shall at all times
abide by the then-current Board approved Filling Schedule. The Board shall act promptly
in approving Filling Schedule requests. Nothing in this Article 22 shall prevent Customer
from operating its storage facility at any time, provided that any storage operation that

falls outside of the approved Filling Schedule shall not be exempt from the terms of
~ Article 5 herein.

Exhibit A of the Contract is amended by deleting in its entirety the existing Exhibit A and
substituting the attached First Amended Exhibit A in its place.

Exhibit B of the Contract is amended by deleting in its entirety the existing Exhibit B and
substituting the attached First Amended Exhibit B in its place.

With the exception of the provisions of the Contract specifically contained in this
Amendment, all other terms, conditions and covenants contained in the Contract shall
remain in full force and effect and as set forth inthe Contract.

This Amendment to the Contract shall be effective ‘and.binding upon the Parties when 1t
is signed and acknowledged by the duly authorized repiesentatives of both Parties, is
approved by Customer’s governing body, and is approved by the Board and the Detroit
City Council.

(Signatures appear on next page)



In Witness Whereof, the City and Customer, by and through their duly authonzeg
officers and representatives, have executed this Amendment. -

City of Flat Rock:
By:
Jonathan Dropiewski
Its: Mayor
By:
Lorene Butski

Its:  City Clerk

City of Detroit:

By:

Dave Bing
Tts: Mayor

APPROVED BY
FLAT ROCK CITY COUNCIL ON:

Date

APPROVED BY DETROIT
BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS ON:

Date

APPROVED BY
DETROIT CITY COUNCIL ON:

Date

P



FIRST AMENDED EXHIBIT A

Customer’s Water Distribution Points

This Exhibit contains the following information:

1.

2.

The corporate limits of Customer;
The agreed upon water Service Area of Customer which (a) may or may not be entirely
within the corporate limits of Customer and (b) which may or may not include the entire

area within the Customer’s corporate limits;

The specific location of the Water Distribution Points, including any Board approved
emergency connections;

The designation of appurtenances to be maintained by Customer and those to be
maintained by the Board; and

A list of any closed meter locations.
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EXHIBIT A

City of Flat Rock Emergency Connections:

Connections 1o City of Rockwoed

7 (IVE&W at the intersection of North Huron River Drive east of Woodburn

R” GV&W at the intersection of Woodruff and Olmstead

Connection to Huron Township

127 GV&W at the intersection of Inkster Road and West Huron River Drive

Ash Township

3888 Will Carleton Dr.

Berlin Township

4064 Will Carleton Rd.
4360 Will Carleton Rd.

14907 John L.
14920 John L
14932 John L.
14954 Jobhn L
14831 Monroe
14867 Monroe
14920 Monroe
14941 Monroe
14973 Monroe
14838 Toledo St
14860 Toledo St
14973 Toledo St
14993 Toledo St

15000 Telegraph Rd.

Huron Tewnship
26038 Inkster Rd.
26200 Inkster Rd
26324 Inkster Rd
26426 Inkster Rd
26570 Inkster Rd
26670 Inkster Rd
Rockwood

21805 Woodruff Rd.
21823 Woodruff Rd.
21829 Woodruff Rd.
21917 Woodruftf Rd.
22449 Woodruff Rd.
22707 Woodruff Rd.
23445 Woodruff Rd.

FK-03 and FI-04

City of Flat Rock Exhibit A

City of Flat Rock Water Customers Outside Corporate Limits:

3972 Will Carleton Dr.

4128 Will Catleton Rd
4384 Will Carleton Rd.

14908 John L
14923 John L
14940 John L
14955 John L.
14837 Monroe
14895 Monroe
14932 Monroe
14948 Monroe
14980 Monroe
14840 Toledo St
14961 Toledo St
14985 Toledo St
14997 Toledo St

26080 Inkster Rd
26250 Inkster Rd
26368 Inkster Rd
26464 Inkster Rd
26640 Inkstexr Rd

21819 Woodruff Rd.
21825 Woodruff Rd.
21835 Woodruff Rd.
21941 Woodruff Rd.
22475 Woodruff Rd.
23339 Woodruff Rd.

City of Flat Rock Master Meter(s) Not In Service:

FINAL 10/31/2011

3994 Will Carleton Dr.

4228 Will Carleton Rd

14901 John L
14915 John L
14931 John L
149435 Jobn L
14830 Monroe
14830 Monroe
14911 Monroe
14940 Monroe
14962 Monroe
14833 Toledo St
14845 Toledo St
14970 Toledo St
14992 Toledo St
14931 Telegraph Rd.

26120 Inkster Rd
26280 Inkster Rd
26414 Inkster Rd
26510 Inkster Rd
26656 Inkster Rd

21821 Woodmiff Rd.
21827 Woodruff Rd.
21895 Woodruff Rd.
22427 Woodruff Rd.
22525 Woodruff Rd.
23407 Woodruff Rd.
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EXHIBIT-A
FK-01
GIBRALTAR AND =75
CITY OF FLAT ROCK

/ S DEAL DRAWIN
GIBRALTAR RD. Pem s
120° e VAL 16" WM1988 i E;l 16" GATE VALVE
= 1= i
PLUG s X A
E{il 0 | . N DWSD.
"4 WM. 1967 FK B 240 PO\ 1987
= W?—i & B!.OW\ CONC. ENGASEMENT
16" GATE VALVE OFF VALVE é %
. 0=
: Lo
p C ©
* T
o
16" W.M. 1967 [N FK 18" WM. 1967
FK—CITY OF FLAT ROCK
OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE
SITE PLAN [4"
NOT TO SCALE

LOCATIONS SUBJECT TO FK
VERIFICATION IN THE FIELD. ! @ Jﬂ

City of Flat Rock Exhibit A FINAL 10/31/2011 Page 3of 6




EXHIBIT-A
K01
GIBRALTAR AND [-75
CltY OF FLAT ROCK

D.W.S.D. OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE

%,_5-
[ ]| 3
— _ _ _ e
FLOW KL -
® A a EI -
I <
m ® m ® 1 El -0)
M T — —— ISl e -
- & I i
wallll. { i AT x
‘d 2] 1] 2'{' 11—6‘ 1'_10- a1lﬂ | ] 1){’ 1'_5' 1._'_/10. ", g
E . "’ﬂlLA': T _‘,_.A B ‘ e o T ,"_._a_ N ::al‘ . . / , _,,'-:;j_- s L J/'“ T
% @ WALLS 12" THICK ®
g i* CORP ALL AROUND.- 1" CORP
METER PIT DETAIL
NOT TO BCALE
CITY OF FLAT ROCK
OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE
EGEND TYPICAL PRESSURE
TAG[QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE LOSS THRU METER
A | 1 |MAG METER 12 METER TYPE | P.Sl. LOSS
B 13 | GATE VALVES i6° VENTURI 1= 2
C | 1 | CHECK VALVE 1 MAG 0
D 1 | TEE o%E TURBINE 1-6
E | 2 | REDUCERS - 16X12"
F | 1 | MECHANICAL GOUPLING s ® UPSTREAM PRESSURE TRANSMITTER,
DWSD OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE
DOWNSTREAM PRESSURE TRANSMITTER,
DWSD OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE
ADDRESS -
FEED TO _ CITY OF FLAT ROCK
FEED FROM 24 DWSD. TRANS MAIN
TYPE OF METER _ ABB MAG METER
SZE OF METER 12
METER NUMBER —_ 3KB20000017978
DATE METER SET -
METER PIT CONST & SIZE REINFORCED CONGRETE 28'-8" X 9-0" ID.
GATE BOOK No - -
REMARKS " MAZDA PLANT, LOGATION

City of Flat Rock Exhibit A FiNAL 10/31/2011 Page 4 of 6




EXHIBIT-A
FK-02
VREELAND AND =75
CITY OF FLAT ROCK

in

VREELAND RD.
210’
CITY OF WOODHAVEN
e CY-WRLLNE— — — e — —
BROWNSTOWN TWP.
15! _
>= ' 3
< -
= = B85
lljl} Q 12" GATE VALVE BB
o
E . 12" AC. 167 K | 12" AC. 1967 BR ‘lr
O E‘JF 3 g 1 [| I 3
E % sp” |
T )

er "

BR-BROWNSTOWN TOWNSHIP
OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE

FK-CITY OF FLAT ROCK
OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENACE

METER PIT FK-02
SEE DETAIL DRAWING

SITE_PLAN
NOT TO SCALE
LOCATIONS SUBJECT TO FK
VERIFICATION IN THE FIELD. 0o
City of Flat Rock Exhibit A FINAL 10/31/2011
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EXHIBIT-A
FK-02
VREELAND AND =75
CITY OF FLAT ROCK

DW.S.D. OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE

[~ =
) 23!7_0" j
| - . . . < N . . - N N - a 4
s _‘F
| e' 1" CORP H 1" CORP h 2
- O Boe, ® & ©® 4@ Q 2
. 7 e -
iy . ~ I *
. ] .
E ° l ) Ny U . * L L} 41 ’, 1"
n | —o—ofgl  3-0" _{-07-0 2-3 .
% ! T T T F T A -1 4 - :_
4ol ¥ g 4 4 4@
\'_ o i ® FLOW
- —
10" — —
I_l’;ﬁ” 1r_5%u 1»_5%n g" 4 8" / 5._11%11 g 2,_‘7%,.
WALLS 12" THICK L 1* CORP
ALL ARCUND . METER PIT DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE
CITY OF FLAT ROCK 0&M " \BROWNSTOWN TWF, .O&M
| LEGEND ]
TAG[QTY DESCRIPTION SizE ®) ®
A | 1_|FLGD. CHECK VALVE 12"
B | 1 |FLGD. TEST TEE 12"%4” _SECTION AA
C 1 1 |TEST TEE ASSEMBLY W/ 3'X9” COMPANION FLG| -
D | 2 |FLGD. TEES 1274
E | 1 |FLGD. BUTTERFLY VALVE 12" TYPICAL PRESSURE T
£ | 1 |FLGD. VENTURI METER_356.625" F-F 12°%6.8" LOSS THRU METER
G 11 |F-PE PIPE WA" TAP_FOR CORP. STOF. 12" MEIER TYPE | P.S.i LOSS
‘»H 1 |DRESSER_STYLE COUPLING 12" VENTUR! 1-2
| T 1 |PIPE_SADDLE WA" TAP FOR CORP. STOP. 12" MAG 0
7 | 1 _|F-F _PIPE WA’ TAP FOR GORP. STOP. 12" TURBINE 4 -8
K | 38 |GATE VALVE 12
L T 2 (GATE VALVE L UPSTREAM PRESSURE TRANSMITTER,
M | 1 |DRESSER STML.E COUPLING s DWSD OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE
[ N |1 [FLGD. VENTURI METER, 12.75" F-F FX35"
ADDRESS oo __ 21370 VREELAND
FEED TO o __CITY OF FLAT ROCK
FEED FROM _ oo BROWNSTOWN TWP. , DEDUCT
TYPE OF METER . i oo PFS VENTURIS
SIZE OF METER .. oo e 12" X 6 & 385" X 231
METER NUMBER .. e o 7055157
DATE METER SET .o i 08/202002

METER PIT CONST & SIZE REINFORCED CONCRETE 23'-0" X B-ft" 1.D.

GATE BOOK No — . - FK
REMARKS . . . o __ UPDATED 1103 02

Gity of Flat Rock Exhibit A FINAL 10/31/2011 Page 6 of 6




FIRST AMENDED EXHIBIT B

Projected Annual Volume and Minimum Annual Volume (Table 1)
Pressure Range and Maximum Flow Rate (Table 2}
Flow Split Assumptions (Table 3)
Addresses for Notice (Table 4)

Table 1 and Table 2 set forth the agreed upon Projected Annual Volumes, Minimum Annual
Volumes, Pressure Ranges and Maximum Flow Rates for the term of this Contract provided that
figures in bold type face are immediately enforceable pursuant to the terms of Section 5.07 and
italicized figures are contained for planning purposes only but will become effective absent the
negotiated replacements anticipated in Section 5.07.

The approximate rate of flow by individual meter set forth in Table 3 is the assumption upon
which the Pressure Range commitments established in Table 2 have been devised. Should
Customer deviate from these assumptions at any meter(s), the Board may be unable to meet the
stated Pressure Range commitments in this Contract or in the contract of another customer of the
Board and Section 5.08 of this Contract may be invoked.

10



Projected Annual Volume and Minimum Annual Volume

FIRST AMENDED EXHIBIT B

Table 1

Fiscal Year Projected Minimum Annual
Ending Annual Volume Volume
June 30 (mct) {(mcf)

2010 68,000 34,000
2011 68,000 34,000
2012 68,000 34,000
2013 67,000 33,500
2014 67,000 33,500
2015 67,000 33,500
2016 67,000 33,500
2017 67,000 33,500
2018 67,000 33,500
- 2019 67,000 33,500
2020 67,000 33,500
2021 67,000 33,500
2022 67,000 33,500
2023 67,000 33,500
2024 67,000 33,500
2025 67,000 33,500
2026 67,000 33,500
2027 67,000 33,500
2028 67,000 33,500
2029 67,000 33,500
2030 67,000 33,500
2031 67,000 33,500
2032 67,000 33,500
2033 67,000 33,500
2034 67,000 33,500
2035 67,000 33,500
2036 67,000 33,500
2037 67,000 33,500
2038 67,000 33,500
2039 67,000 33,500

I1



FIRST AMENDED EXHIBIT B

Table 2

Pressure Range and Maximum Flow Rate

Calendar Pressure Range (psi) Pressure Range (psi) Maximum Flow Rate
Year (deduct) (mgd)
Meter FK-01 Meter FK-02
Min Max Min Max Max Day Peak Hour

2010 56 79 NA NA 2.76 3.89
2011 56 79 NA NA 2.76 3.89
2012 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2013 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2014 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2015 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2016 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2017 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2018 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2019 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2020 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2021 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2022 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2023 56 79 NA NA - 2.60 3.50
2024 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2025 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2026 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2027 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2028 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2029 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2030 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2031 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2032 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2033 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2034 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2035 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2036 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2037 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2038 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50
2039 56 79 NA NA 2.60 3.50

12



FIRST AMENDED EXHIBIT B

Table 3
Flow Split Assumptions

Meter Assumed Flow Split (2012-2014)

FK-01 65%

FK-02 35%

Table 4
Addresses for Notice

Tf to the Board: If to Customer:
Director City Clerk
Detroit Water and Sewerage Department City of Flat Rock
735 Randolph 25500 Gibraltar Road

Detroit, Michigan 48226

Flat Rock, Michigan 48134
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City of Par Dot

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES

25500 GIBRALTAR RD.
FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN 48134
BRUCE A. HAMMOND PHONE 734 782-2470 FAX 734 783-0304 MATTHEW B. SYPE
DIRECTOR OFFICE HOURS 8:00 to 4:30 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR

December 15, 2011

To: Mayor and Council Members
Re: Comparison and Analysis of Proposed DWSD Contract

Current Contract Current Usage Proposed Contract
Annual
Volume 68,000 mef 64,900 mef 67,000 mef
Maximum
Day 2.76 mgd 2.34 mgd 2.60 mgd
Peak Hour  3.89 mgd 3.07 mgd 3.50 mgd
Current Contract
Annual Volume Rate
67,000 mef X $9.50/mef = $636,500.00
Annual Fixed Cost= $272.028.00
$908,528.00
Proposed Contract
Annual Volume Rate
67,000 mcf X $8.84/mef= $592,280.00
Fixed Cost = $254.352.00
$846,632.00

Current contract:  $908,528.00
Proposed contract: $846.,632.00
Savings $61,896.00

6.8% reduction in total cost
7.0% reduction in the rate
6.5% reduction in fixed cost



{. E. Raines Company

civil engineers / survevors

December 5, 2011 UNFINISHED BUSINESS - B
REGU

Mayor Jonathan Dropiewski and City Council LAI,?Z?,S?::CIL MTG.

City of Flat Rock

25500 Gibraltar Road

Flat Rock, MI 48134
RE: Recommendation for Progress Payment (No. 2)

Pavement Repairs at Water Main Breaks (2011), City of Flat Rock
C. E. Raines Company Job No: FR-562

Dear Mayor and Council:

We are in receipt of the Second (2™) Contractor invoice submitted for work completed on the
above-referenced project. Based on our review of the invoice and construction records, we are
recommending approval of progress payment in the amount of § 15,434.25.

This amount is tabulated as follows:

Original Contract Sum: $ 27,294.00
Net Change by Change Orders: $ 0.00
Contract Sum to Date: $ 27.294.00
Total completed and Stored to Date: $ 2799182
Retainage (5% of Completed Work): $ 1,399.59
Total Earned Less Retainage: $ 26,592.23
Less Previous Certificates for Payment: ($_ 11.157.98)
Current Payment Due: $ 15,434.25

Please forward payment to:
G.V. Cement Contracting Company
20000 Dix-Toledo Hwy.
Brownstown, MI 48183

A copy of the invoice, and our tabulation, reflecting the work completed to date is attached for
your review and records. Please contact our office, should you have any questions in this regard.

Sincerely,

C. E. RAINES COMPANY
City of Flat Rock Engineers

CTY OF FLAT ROCK

Peter I, ‘ n.
Staff Engineer

17704 Fort Street Riverview, Michigan 48193 (734) 285-7510 Fax (734) 2857572

J




Attachments: Invoice # 11-195 (G.V. Cement Contracting Co.)
Payment Estimate No. 2 tabulation

Ce: Mr. Vincent Vitale, President, G. V. Cement Contrécting Co.
Mr. Russell Wittman, P.E., President, C. E. Raines Co.
Mr. William Bettendorf, Field Supervisor, C. E. Raines Co.




G.V. Cement Contracting Company

20000 Dix-Toledo
Brownstown, MI 48183
734-479-2180 fax: 479-0022

BILL TO

City of Flatrock
¢/o Charles Raines Co.,
17700 Fort Street
Riverview, MI 48192

INVOICE

DATE INVOICE #
12/5/2011 11-195
PROJECT

Repairs (@ Water Main Breaks

QTY TYPE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE | TOTAL PRICE
Job # FR-562
Section I - Telegraph Road R.O.W.
25|L.F. Remove Curb and Gutter 10.00 250.00
34.418.Y. Remove pavement 10.00 844.00
84.4|8.Y. 10" concrete pavement 60.00 5,064.00
1 | Lump sum | Traffic Maintenance and Control 1,500.00 1,500.00
Subtotal 7,658.00
Section IV -- 25750 E. Huron River Drive
6|L.F. Remove Curb and Gutter 8.00 43.00
7.33|S8.Y. Remove pavement 8.00 58.64
7.33|8.Y. 9" concrete pavement 58.00 425.14
1 | Lump sum | Traffic and maintenance and control 500.00 500.00
Subtotal 1,031.78
Section V — Huroc Park
274|5.F. Remove Sidewaltk 2.00 548.00
274 | S.F. Misc. Sidewalk, 6 inch 4.00 1,096.00
1 | Lump sum [ Restoration and Clean-up 500.00 500.00
Subtotal 2,144.00
Section VI -- Evergreen Street
6|S.F. Remove Sidewalk 2.00 12.00
6|S.F. Misc. Sidewalk Ramp, ADA inserted 9 inch 12.00 72.00
1.8(S.Y. Remove Pavement 8.00 14.40
1.8|8.Y. Misc. Concrete Pavement, Reinforced, ISC-Type 3, 9 inch 58.00 104.40
1| Lump sum ; Restoration and Clean-up 500.00 500.00
1 | Lump sum | Traffic Maintenance and Control 250.00 250.00
Total

Page 1




G.V. Cement Contracting Company

INVOICE

20000 Dix-Toledo DATE INVOICE #
Brownstown, MI 48183 12/5/2011 11-195
734-479-2180 fax: 479-0022
BILL TO
City of Flatrock
¢/o Charles Raines Co.
17700 Fort Street
Riverview, M1 48192
PROJECT
Repairs (@ Water Main Breaks
QTY TYPE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE | TOTAL PRICE
Subtotal 952.80
Section VII -- 29115 8. Wesley Road

20|L.F. Remove Curb and Gutter 8.00 160.00
26.67|S.F. Remove Pavement 8.00 213.36
26.67|8.Y. Misc. Concrete Pavement, non-reinforced, 8 inch 35.00 1,040.13
1| Lump sum | Traffic Maintenance and Control 250.00 250.00
Subtotal 1,663.49

Section IX -- Arsenal Road Youth Center
274|SF. Remove sidewalk 2.00 548.00
274|S.F. Misc. Sidewalk, 4 inch 4.00 1,096.00
1]{Lump sum | Restoration and Clean-up 500.00 500.00
Subtotal 2,144.00
Total $15,594.07

Page 2
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H U NG‘ER‘PO R D&CO Certified Public Accountants

A Professional Corporation

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To tlhe Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Fiat Rock, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Flat Rock,
Michigan, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the City of Flat Rock, Michigan’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. '

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reascnable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental acftivities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Flat Rock, Michigan, as of June 30, 2011, and
the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated December 12,
2011 on our consideration of the City of Flat Rock, Michigan’s internal control over financiai reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements
and ofher mafters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the interna! control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards and important for assessing the results of
our audit,

13305 Reeck Road e Southgate, Michigan 48195 ¢ (734) 246-9600 » Fax (734) 246-8349 « www.hungerfordco.com
Members - American Institute of Certified Public Accountants - Michigan Association of Certified Public Accountants



To the Honorable Mayor and

Members of the City Council
City of Flat Rock, Michigan
Page 2

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Sfates of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 9 and 36 through 48
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to ba an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statemenis in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information
and carnparing the information for consistency with management's respenses fo our Inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and cther knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information -because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming epinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Flat Rock, Michigan's financial statements as a whole. The accompanying other
supplemental information, as identified in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. The other supplemental information is the
responsibility of management and was detived from and relate directly fo the underlying accounting and
other records used fo prepare the financial statements. The other supplemental information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, fncluding comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Thangrgad « Co

Southgate, Michigan
December 12, 2011

- HUNGERFORD,CO.




CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Flat Rock's financial performance provides an overview of the City's

financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Please read it in conjunction with the City’s financial
statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The City’s total net assets decreased by $2,370,829 {or 11%). The governmental net assets
decreased by $2,143,269 (or 16.5%) and the business-type net assets decreased by $227,560
{or 2.6%).

+ Of the $19,228,198 reported in net assets, $18,812,376 is the investment in capital assets net
of related debt, $347,688 is reserved for debt service and capital projects and $68,134 may be
used to meet the ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e At the end of the fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund
balance of $2,251,127 a decrease of $46,524 from the previous year.

e Atthe end of the current fiscal year the fund balance for the General Fund decreased $145,980
to a final balance of $597,040. The decrease was, in part, due to transfers to other funds in

the amount of $342,188. General Fund revenues exceeded expenditures in the amount of
$67,622.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The City's basic financial
statements are comprised of three components:

1. Government-wide financial statements.
2. Fund financial statements.
3. Notes to the financial statements.

The financial statement's focus is on beth the City as a whole (government-wide) and on the major individual
funds. Both perspectives {government-wide and major fund) allow users to address relgvant questions, broaden
a basis for comparison (interperiod or intergovernmental) and enhance the City's accountability. This report
also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements which further explains and
supports the information presented in these statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's
finances. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are designed to be corporate-like in that
all the governmental and business-type activities are consolidated into columns which add to a total for the
Primary Government. These statements should help the reader to answer the question: Is the City, as a whole,
better off or worse off as a result of this year's activities. These statements include all non-fiduciary assets and
liabiiities using the accrual basis of accounting. The current year's revenues and expenses are recognized
regardless of when cash is received or paid.



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

Management's Discussion and Analysis

The focus of the Statement of Net Assets is designed to be similar to the bottom line results for the City and its
governmental and business-type activities. This statement combines and consolidates governmental funds’
current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations (total
economic resources). This statement presents all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as “net assets.” Over time, increases and decreases in net assets may indicate whether the
City's financial position is improving or deteriorating. However, in order to assess the overall health of the City,
non-financial factors such as the City's properly tax base and condition of the City's infrastructure may also
need to be considered.

The Statement of Activities is focused on both the gross and net cost of the various activities (govemmental,
business-type, and component unit) which are supported by the City's general tax and other revenues. This
presentation is intended to summarize and simplify the user's analysis of the cost of the various governmental
services andfor the subsidy to various business-type activities and/or component units, This statement shows
how the City's net assets changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported when the
underlying events occur, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are
reported In these statements for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both statements report two activities:

1. Governmental Acfivities: WMost of the City's basic services (i.e., police, fire, public works,
parks, etc) are reported under this category. Taxes and intergovernmental revenues generally
fund these services. The City's governmenta! activities include general government, poiice,
fire, building and safety, public works, recreation and culture, library, community enrichment
and development, road maintenance and repair and tax refund.

2. Business-type Activities. The City charges fees to customers to help cover all or most of the
cost of certain services it provides. The City operates one business-type activity that reflects
private sector type operations: Water and Sewer service.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the fund financial statements presentation more
familiar. These statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant funds (Major
Funds), not the city as a whole. A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that
the City uses to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.
In addition to major funds, the City presents individual fund data for nen-major funds in the supplementary
information section. All of the funds of the City can be divided In three categories: governmental proprietary,
and fiduciary. Each category uses different accounting approaches.

Governmental Funds:

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities
in the govemment-wide financial statements. However, the governmental fund statements are presented on a
modified accrual basis, which focuses on the near-term sources and use cf available resources. This is the
manner in which the budget is typically developed. The City establishes Funds for various purposes, and the
Fund Financial Statements allow the demonstration of sources and uses andfor budgetary compliance
associated therewith, Governmental Funds include the General Fund, special revenue funds, capital project
funds, and debt service funds.



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

Management's Discussion and Analysis

The focus of governmental funds (current financial resources) is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements (total economic resources). Therefore, the reader may better understand the long-term
impact of the City's nearterm financing decision by comparing information presented for governmental funds
with the information presented for the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Both
the governmental funds Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison.

Proprietary Funds:

Proprietary funds are used to account for services provided by the City where the City charges customers
(whether external or infernal) for the services It provides. These funds use accrual accounting; the same method
used by private sector businesses. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. The enterprise fund is used
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities In the government-wide financial statements.
The City uses an enterprise fund o account for its Water and Sewer service.

Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. While
these funds represent trust responsibilities of the City, these assets are restricted in purpose and do not
represent discretionary assets of the City. Therefore, these assets are not reflected in the government-wide
financlal statements. The City acts as a trustee or fiduciary for its employee deferred compensation plan. It is a
trusteefagent for the other governmental units for which it collects tax payments. The City is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purpose. The City's fiduciary

activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets. These funds are reported using accrual
accounting.

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is essential o a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

ADDITIONAL REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Following the basic financial statements is additional required supplementary information that further explains
and supports the information in the financial statements. The required supplementary information includes
budgetary comparisen schedules.

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Foilowing the required supplementary information is combining financial statements for non-major governmental
funds. These funds are added together and presented in a single column in the basic financial statements, but
are not reported individually, as with major funds, on the governmental fund financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT AS A WHOLE

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In
the City's case, assets exceeded its liabilities at the end of the fiscal year by $19,228,198. However, 28% of the
City's net assets represent its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, roads, storm sewers, water and sewer
systemns, building, and equipment) less any related debt used to acguire or construct these assets that is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide essential services to citizens; therefore, these assets
are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of
refated debt, it should be noted that resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from cther sources
because the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

-5~



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

Management's Discussion and Analysis
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT AS A WHOLE (Continued)
CITY OF FLAT ROCK’S NET ASSETS

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Current assets $ 3,001,273 $ 966,874 $ 3,968,147
Bond issuance cost and discounts,
net of accumulated amortization 434,925 - 434,925
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation 28,095.365 12,388,488 40,483,853
TOTAL ASSETS $31,531,563 $13,355,362 $44,886.925
Long-term liabilities outstanding $18,540,400 $ 4,360,803 $22,901,203
Other fiabilities 2,163,291 584,233 2,757,524
Total Liabilities 20,703,691 4,955,036 25658727
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 11,039,145 7,773,231 18,812,376
Restricted 347,688 - 347,688
Unassigned {558.961) 627,095 68,134
Total Net Assets 10,827.872 8,400,326 19,228.198
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND NET ASSETS $31.531,563 $13,355,362 $44 886,095
CITY OF FLAT ROCK’'S CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Govermnmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for services $ 3,048,134 $2,898,000 5 5,945,143
Operating grants 1,245,278 - 1,245,278
General Revenues
Taxes and special assessments 8,459,090 - 8,450,090
Invesiment eamings 924 - 924
Total Revenues 12,753,426 2,808,009 15,651,435
Expenses
General government 1,612,274 - 1,512,274
Police 3,021,329 - 3,021,329
Fire 1,149,289 - 1,149,289
Building and safety 201,887 - 201,837
Public works 1,668,608 - 1,568,608
Recreation and cufture 2,084,653 - 2,094,653
Library 480,153 - 480,153
Community enrichment and development 699,267 - 899,267
Road maintenance and repair 1,478,241 - 1,478,241
Capital Road Improvements 787,102 - 787,102
Tax refund 1,105,344 - 1,105,344
Interest on long-term debt 795,179 - 795,179
Miscellaneous 3,329 - 3,329
Water and sewer - 3,125,569 3,125,569
Total Expenses 14,896,695 3,125,569 18.022 264

-6-




CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
Management's Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT AS A WHOLE (Continued)

CITY OF FLAT ROCK’S CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

{Continued)
Changes in Net Assets $(2,143,269) $ (227,560) $(2,370,6829)
Net Assets, July 1, 2010 12,971,141 8,627,886 21,599.027
Net Assets, June 30, 2011 $10.827 872 $8,400,326 $19,228,188

Governmental Activities
Governmental activities decreased the City's net assets by $2,143,269.
« A coniributing factor to the increase is expenses were in the capital road improvements to three
major roads within the city in the amount of $795,179. Tax refunds in the amount of $1,105,344
were another.

Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities decreased the City's net assets by $227,560. Key factors of this decrease are as
follows:

» Operating revenues decreased by 20% due to a reduction in one shift at an auto manufacturing
facility, the highest system user.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund
balance was $597,040. Total fund balance decreased by $145,990 during the fiscal year.

Tax Increment Finance Authority

The Téx Increment Finance Authority has a fund balance of $94,144.

2010 Road Improvement Construction

The 2010 Road Improvement Construction has a fund balance of $343,758
Other Govermmental Funds

Other Governmental Funds had the following fund balances:

Special Revenue Funds $1,212,255
Debt Service Funds $3,930



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

Management's Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assels

The City investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2011
amounts to $40,483,853 (net of accumulated depreciation}. This investment includes a broad range of capital
assets, which are detailed in the table below. The total increase in the City’s net investment in capital assets
for the current fiscal year was $391,115. The following table is a comparison of the City's net capital assets as
of June 30, 2011 compared to June 30, 2010:

NET CAPITAL ASSETS AT YEAR END
(in thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government

2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011

Capital assets not depreciated

Land $ 1,298 $1,323 3 - % - %1298 §$ 1,323
Capital assets being depreciated

infrastructure 6,795 7,284 - - 6,795 7.284

Buildings 18,055 17,668 4,870 4,756 22,925 22,424

Machinery and equipment 1,082 1,779 148 154 2,130 1,934

Water and sewer mains - - 6,849 7,468 6,849 7,468

Vehicles 83 41 12 10 95 50
Net capital assets $28213  $28.095 $11.879  $12,388  $40,092  $40.483

Additional information regarding the City's capital assets can be located in Note 5 of the notes to basic financial
statements.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the fiscal year, the City had total long-term bonds and notes outstanding of $22,106,402.

OUTSTANDING DEBT AT YEAR END

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Acfivities Government
General obligation bonds
(backed by the City) $17,184,830 $4,615,257 $21,789,887
Equipment Loans 306,515 - 306,515
$17,491,145 $4,615257 $22,106,402

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt the City can issue to 10% of its total state equalized
assessed value of property. The City's total general obligation debt ($22,106,402} is lower than the current
state-imposed limit of $37,531,221,

8-



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

Management's Discussion and Analysis

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City of Flat Rock's budget for year ending 2012 is not recommending any change to the millage rate. The

water and sewer rates are $6.00 residential and $7.50 for commercial and $7.75 for industrial per thousand
galiens.

The City's 2012 budgeted revenue consists of 65.9% tax revenues, 24.7% local sources and 9.4% from other
sources. The City's tax base is projected to have a decrease of $470,115. Local revenues are projected fo
increase by $141,250 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The major contributing factor to this increase is
an increase in contributions from other funds, specifically the Downtown Development Authority.

The City's general fund expenditures are allocated 52.2% to public safety, police, fire, and building and safety.
The department of public services amounts to 23.6% and the general operations, which include the clerk’s and
treasurer's departments, total 19.4% and other departments total 4.8%. In addition, it is recommended that
expenditures will decrease by $545,153 over the previous year's budget, which can be attributed to the budget
cuts in most departments by reduction of staff and general expenditures reductions. The general fund is

projecting the fund balance to decrease by $43,011, which will bring the general fund balance to $654,029 or
7% of the general fund budget.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City's finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives.
Questions regarding any information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should
be addressed to the following:

- City of Flat Rock
25500 Gibraltar Road
Flat Rock, Michigan 48134-1399



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Primaty Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,419,559 491,197 $ 2,910,756
Accounts Receivable 293,984 407 954 701,938
Due From Business-Type Activities 2,647 - 2647
Due From Trust and Agency Fund 76 - 76
Due From Other Governmental Units 222,728 - 222728
Inventories 12,882 20,572 33,454
Prepaid Expenses 49,397 47,151 06,548
Total Current Assets 3,001,273 966,874 3,968,147
Noncurrent Assels
Bond Issuance Cost and Discounts,
Net of Accumulated Amortization 434,925 - 434,925
Capital Assets, Nef of
Accumutated Depreciation 28,095,365 12,388,488 40,483,853
Total Noncurrent Assets 28,530,280 12,388,488 40,918,778
TOTAL ASSETS 31,531,563 13,355,362 $44,886,925
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 333,783 235177 % 568,960
Accrued Expenses 268,164 30,619 307,783
Due to Governmental Activities - 2,647 2647
Compensated Absences, Current 148,199 10,841 158,040
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations 1,413,145 305,949 1,719,004
Total Current Liabilities 2,163,291 594 233 2,767,524
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated Absences, Long-Term 552,229 30,246 582,475
Net Other Post Employment Benefit Obligations 1,210,171 - 1,910,171
Noncurrent Portion of Leng-Term Obligations 16,078,000 4,330,657 20,408,557
Total Noncurrent Liabiiities 18,540,400 4360,803 22,901,203
Total Liabilities 20,703,691 4,955,036 25,668,727
NET ASSETS
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 11,039,145 7,773,231 18,812,376
Restricted for
Debt Seivice 3,930 - 3,930
Capital Projects 343,758 - 343,758
Unrestricted (558,961) 627,095 68,134
Total Net Assets 10,827 872 8,400,326 19,228,198
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 31,631,563 13,365,362  $44,886,925

See accompanying notes.
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables .
Taxes
Accrued Interest and Other
Due From Other Funds
Due From Enterprise Funds
Due From Trust and Agency Funds
Due From Other Governmenta! Units
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Compensated Absences, Cutrent
Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted for Debt Service
Restricted for Investment
in Capital Assets
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCE

CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 38, 2011

Tax Increment 2010 Road Nonmajor Total
General Finance Improvement Governmental  Governmental

Fund Authority Canstruction Funds . Funds
$ 567075 § 94970 $ 347,102 % 1410412 § 2,419,558
254,788 - - 19,897 274,685
19,299 - - - 19,209
112,465 - - 12,122 124,587
2,647 - - - 2,647
76 - - - 76
70,281 - - 152 447 222728
12,882 - - - 12,882
42,901 - - 6,496 49,397
$1.082,414 % 94970 § 347,102 § 1,601,374 § 3,125,860
$ 254807 % - % 3344 % 75832 % 333,783
90,080 - - 178,074 268,164
140,477 - - 7,722 148,199
- 826 - 123,761 124,587
485,374 826 3,344 385,189 874,733
55,783 - - 6,496 62,279
- - - 3,930 3,930
- - 343,758 - 343,758
541,257 94,144 - 1,205,758 1,841,160
597,040 94,144 343,758 1,216,185 2,251,127
$1,082414 § 94970 3 347102 § 1601374 $ 3,125,860

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

RECONCIL!ATION OF FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO
NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2011

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and are not
reported in the funds.

Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and are not
reported in the funds.

Other post employment benefit obligations are recognized for the Statement of Activities

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and are not reported
in the Funds.

Unamortized bond issue costs not recorded in the funds

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

See accompanying nofes.
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$ 2,251,127

- 28,095,365

(552,229)

(1,810,171)

(17,491,145)

434,925

$10,827,672



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Tax Increment 2010 Road Nonmajor Total
General Finance Improvement  Governmental  Governmental
Fund Authority GConstruction Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property Taxes $5,286,470 3 3728930 % - 8 1,057,806 $ 10,073,206
Elections 4,530 - - - 4,639
General Government 210,715 - - - 210,715
Palice Department 421,757 - - - 421,757
Fire Deparlment 221,112 - - - 221,112
Building and Safety 196,849 - - - 196,949
Public Works 304,528 - - - 304 526
Recreation and Culture 120,150 - - 1,316,912 1,437,062
Community Enrichment and
Development 131,653 - - - 131,553
State Shared Revenue 692,472 - - 434,142 1,126,614
Federal Shared Revenue - - - 118,664 118,664
Rental Ingome - - - 434,938 434,938
Other - 30,717 - 89,204 119,921
Interest - 561 - 363 924
Total Revenues 7,500,243 3,760,208 - 3,452,029 14,802,480
EXPENDITURES
General Government 1,429,807 - - - 1,428,807
Police Department 2,862,305 - - - 2,862,305
Fire Department 1,049,417 - - - 1,049,417
Building and Safety 200,884 - - - 200,884
Public Works 1,297,183 - - - 1,297,183
Recreation and Culture 665,230 - - 1,345,104 2,010,334
Library - - - 429,256 428,256
Community Enrichment and
Development 17,795 57,942 - 767,750 843,487
Road Maintenance and Repair - - - 481,751 481,751
Capital Road Improvements - - 2,156,242 - 2,156,242
Tax Refund - 2,684,830 - - 2,684,830
Debt Service - Principal - - - 1,105,000 1,105,000
Debt Service - Interest - - - 795,179 795,179
Miscellaneous - - - 3,329 3,329
Total Expenditures 7.522 621 2742772 2,156,242 4,627,369 17,348,004
Excess Revenues
{Expenditures) 67,622 1,017,436 (2,156,242} _ {1,475340) (2,546 524)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Financing Proceeds - - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000
Operating Transfers In 128,576 - - 1,608,252 1,737,828
Operating Transfers Out (342,188) (1,096,646) - (208,994) (1,737,828)
Totat Other Finanting
Sources (Uses) (213,612} _{1,096,646) 2,600,000 1,310,258 2,500,000
Excess of Revenues and
Other Sources Over (Under) :
Expenditures and Other Uses (145,800) {79,210} 343,758 (165,082) {46,524}
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2010 743,030 173.354 - 1,381,267 2,287,651
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2011 $ 597040 % 94,144 § 343758 § 1,218,185 § 2,251,127

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds $ (46,524)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays and construction in progress as expenditures. However in
the Statement of Activities, the cost of these assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as

depreciation expense. This is the amount that capital outlays and construction in progress exceeded
depreciation expense, (117,818)

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt

increases long-term liabllities in the Statement of Net Assets. Repayment of bond principal is an

expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the

Statement of Net Assets. This is the amount by which proceeds exceeded payments. {1,349,985)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Ofther post employment benefit obligations are recognized

for Statement of Activities (632,803)
Amortization of current year bond issuance
costs and discounts {40,595)
Change in long-term compensated absences 79,084
Anticipated Michigan Tax Tribunal Settlement {(34.630) (628,944)
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $(2,143,269)

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Customers
Prepaid Expenditures
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

{ IABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Current Portion of Accumuiated Compensated Absences
Current Portlon of Deferred Loss on Bond Refund
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations

Total Current Liabilities

WNoncurrent Liabilities
Accumulated Compensated Absences
Deferred Loss on Bond Refund
General Obligation Bonds Payable
Less Current Portion Shown in Current Liabilities

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investment in Capital
Assets, Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes.
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Enterprise Fund
Water and Sewer

$ 491,197
407,954

47,151

20,572

966,874

12,388,488

$ 13,355,362

$ 235177
39,619

2,647

10,841

1,844

304,105

594,233

41,087
21,249
4,615,257
{316,790)

4,360,803

4,955,036

7,773,231
627,085

8,400,326

$ 13,356,362




CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Enterptise Fund

Water and Sewer
OPERATING REVENUES
Customer Billings 5 2,740,475
Capital Charges 21,951
Service Connections 486,095
Setvice Charges 55,806
Other Revenue 33,682
Total Operating Revenues 2,898,009
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Water Purchases 811,768
Cost of Sewage Disposal 760,741
System Maintenance and Repairs 622,208
General and Administrative ] 367,722
Depreciation 470,736
Amortization (1,844
Total Operating Expenses 3,031,331
Operating Loss {133,322)
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
interest Expense 94,238
Change in Net Assets {227 ,560)
TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING 8,627,886
TOTAL NET ASSETS, ENDING 3 8,400,326

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received From Customers
Other Operafing Revenues
Cash Payments for Goods and Services
Cash to Employees

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Due to Other Funds
Principal Paid on Revenue and General Obligations
Interest Paid on Revenue and General Obligations
Proceeds From Revenue and General Obligations
Purchase of Capital Assets

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Net Decrease in Cash

CASH BALANCE - JULY 1, 2010
CASH BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2011

RECONCILIATION OF QPERATING LOSS TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Loss
Depreciation
Amortization
Change in Assets and Liabilities
Inrcrease in Accounts Receivable
Decrease in Prepaid Expenditures
Increase in Accounts Payable
Increase in Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

See accompanying notes.
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Enterprise Fund
Water and Sewer

$ 2,856,659
33,682

(2,224,949)
(246,172)

419,220

1,921
(386,079)

(94,238)

966,433
(979,667)

(491,630)

(72,410)

563,607

3 491,197

$ (133,322)
470,736
(1,844)

(7,668)
778
86,738
3,804

3 419,220




ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Payments Received in Advance
Deferred Compensation Benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

JUNE 30, 2011

Tax Trust and Crime Deferred
Collection Agency Prevention  Compensation Total
$ 352918 § 153047 % 473 % - & 606438
- - - 2,389,314 2,389,314
$ 352918 § 153047 473 % 2,380,314  $2,895752
$ 114304 $ 5812 § - % - § 119916
238,614 - - - 238,614
- 147,435 473 - 147,908
~ - - 2,389,314 2,388,314
$ 352918 § 153047 & 473§ 2,389,314  $2,8085,752

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of Flat Rock, Michigan (the “City") conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The
following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used by the City:

Reporting Entity

The City operates as a Home Rule City under the laws of the State of Michigan. The City is govemned by
an elected Mayor and a six-member Council. The accempanying financial statements present the City
and its component units, entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable, Although
blended component units are legally separate entities, in substance, they are part of the City's operations.

Blended Component Units

The City of Flat Rock Building Authority (the “Authority”) is a separate legal entity from the City, the
Authority is reported as if it were a part of the primary government because its sole purpose is o finance
and construct the City's public buildings. The intended purpose is the acquisition, fumishing, equipping,
owning, improving, enlarging, eperating, and maintaining a building or buildings, automobile parking lots
or structures, recreational facilities, stadiums and the necessary site or sites thereof, together with
appurtenant properties and facilities necessary or convenient use thereof, for use for any legitimate public
purpose of the City.

The Downtown Development Authority (the “Authority”) was created under Act No. 197 of the Michigan
State statutes to correct and prevent deterioration in the downtown district, encourage historical
preservation, and to promote economic development within the downtown district. In addition, the
Authority budget is subject to approval by the City Councll. Funding for the Authority is provided from the
increased property tax revenues from any benefited property.

The Tax Increment Finance Authority (the "Authority") was created under Act No. 450 of the Michigan
State statutes with the purpose to bolster the declining value of the lands located within the district. The
Authority has a targeted development area which will be developed and uitimately lead to increasing the
values of the properties located within the targeted area. Funding for the Authority .is provided by
capturing the increased property tax revenues from the increase in valuations of the benefited properties.
In addition, the Authority’s budget is subject to approval by the City Council.

Jointly Governed Organizations

Jointly governed organizations are discussed in Note 11.

Major Taxpayer

Approximately 36 percent of property tax revenue is from one company located in the City of Flat Rock,
and 35 percent of water, sewer and industrial charge revenue are from the same company.

20-



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges
for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues, Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenue.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financiat statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund, fiduciary fund and component unit
financial statements. Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a fiability is
Incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmenta! fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized as soon as it is both
measurable and available. Revenue is considered to be available if it is collected within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 80 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. The following major revenue sources meet the availability criterion: state shared revenue, district
court fines, and interest associated with the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered
to be available only when cash is received by the City.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
debt service expenditures, expenditures relating to compensated absences, and claims and judgments
are recorded only when payment is due.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

21-



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Tax Increment Finance Authority {TIFA) - TIFA Is a special revenue fund used to develop and increase
the value of properties located within the targeted area.

2010 Road Improvement Fund — The 2010 Road Improvement Fund is capital project fund created for
road improvement projects throughout the City including Arsenal, Vreeland and Hall roads.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

Water and Sewer Fund - The Water and Sewer Fund is an Enterprise Fund. The City operates an
Enterprise Fund, which accounts for the operation of the Water and Sewer Systems. The fund is
financed and operated in a manner similar fo a private enterprise. The intent is that costs (expenses,
including depreciation) of providing water and sewer services to the general public are recovered though
user charges.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary Funds account for asseis held by the City in a trustee capacity. Fiduciary
Funds are custodial in nature {assets equal fiabilities) and do not involve the measurement of results of
operations.

Capital Project Funds - Capital Project Funds are used to account for the construction of major capital
facilities and City infrastructure other than those financed by proprietary and trust funds.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used fo account for the accumulation of resources and
payment of general obligation bond principal and interest from special assessment levies when the
government is obligated in some manner for the payment.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are
legally restricted to expenditure for particular purpeses or designated by management to be accounted for
In another fund. These funds are classified as Special Revenue Funds due to the limited usage of their
assets.

Private sector standards of accounting issued prior fo December 1, 1989 are generally followed in both
the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not
conflict with the standards of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, The City has elected not to .
follow private sector standards issued after November 30, 1989 for its business-type activities.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. '

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenue and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the proprietary funds relates to charges
to custorners for sales and services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses.

-22-



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property Tax Revenue

Property taxes are levied on each July 1 on the taxable valuation of property as of the preceding
December 31. Taxes are considered delinquent on August 31 of the current year, at which time penalties
and interest are assessed.

The City's 2010 tax is levied and collectibie on July 1, 2010 and is recognized as revenue in the year
ended June 30, 2011, when the proceeds of the levy are budgeted and available for the financing of
operations,

The 2010 taxable valuation of the City totaled $374.0 million (a portion of which is abated and a portion of
which is captured by the Tax Increment Finance Authority and Downtown Development Autherity), on
which taxes levied consisted of 16.00 mitls for general operating purposes, 1.00 miil for library use, and
.25 mills for use in the historical district. This resulted in approximately $5,286,000 for general operating,
$386,000 for library use, and $94,000 for the historical district. These amounts are recognized in the
respective General Fund, Library Fund, and Historical District Fund.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

Bank Deposits and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits,
and shori-term investments with a maturity of three months or less when acquired. Investments are
stated at fair value. To the extent that cash from various funds has been pooled, pooled investment
income is generally allocated to each fund using a weighted average method. The Statement of Cash
Flows includes hoth restricted and unrestricted cash and cash equivalents.

Receivables and Payables - In general, outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due
toffrom other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances”.
All trade and property tax receivables are shown as net of allowance for uncollectible amounts.

Inventories and Prepaid Items - Inventories are valued at cost, on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventories
of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs- applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, piant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial individual cost of
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful fife in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recarded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Buildings, equipment, and vehicles are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Roads and Infrastructure 10 to 30 Years
Water and Sewer Mains 50 Years
Buildings 50 Years
Vehicles 51c 12 Years
Equipment and Meters 7 to 30 Years



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Compensated Absences (Vacation and Sick Leave) - [t is the City’s policy to permit employees to
accumulate eamed but unused sick and vacation pay benefits. All vacation pay is accrued when incuired
in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability is reporied in governmental
funds where appropriate except in the General Fund, where it is only reported for employee terminations
as of year end.

Long-Term Obligations - In the govemment-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund fypes in
the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabiiities in
the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund-type Statement of Net
Assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the
lifte of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over
the term of the related debt. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs during the current period. The face value of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums recelved on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs are
reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equity - As of June 30, 2011, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”. This Statement provides more clearly defined fund
balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's fund
batances more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending
constraints:

Nonspendable - amounts that are not in spendable form (such as inventory and prepaid items) or are
required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors,

bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling
legislation.

Committed - amounts constrained to specific purposes by the City itself, using its highest levei of
decision-making authority (i.e., City Council). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used
for any other purpose unless the City takes the same highest level action to remove or change the
constraint.

Assigned - amounts the City intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent can be expressed by the
City Council or by an official or body to which the City Council delegates the authority.

Unassigned - amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are reported only in the
general fund.

Beginning fund balances for the City's governmentat funds have been restated to reflect the above
classifications.

The City Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of a
resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance
commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the fund
(such as for special projects).
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 ~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information - The annual budget is prepared by the Mayer and adopted by the City Council;
subsequent amendments are approved by the City Council. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for the General
Fund and all Special Revenue Funds. There were no budget amendments adopted for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011. '

Annual budgets are adopted for all governmental funds. The budget represents a complete financial plan
for all activities of the City for the ensuing fiscal year. The budget document presents information by fund,
function, department, and line items. The legal level of budgetary control adopted by the goveming body
is the department level. Expenditures at this level in excess of amounts budgeted are a violation of State
law.

A comparison of actual results of operations to the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds
budgets adopted by the City Council is included as required supplemental information. The comparison
includes expenditure budget overruns. A comparison of actual results of operations, including budget

overruns to all the fund budgets as adopted by the City Council, is available at the Treasurer’s office for
inspection.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Budgeted Funds - During the year, the City incurred
expenditures in governmental funds that were in excess of the amounts budgeted, as follows:

The unfavorable expenditure variances were caused by unanticipated expenditures that became
necessary during the year.

Budget Actual Variance

General Fund

Pclice Department $ 2771854 $ 2,862,305 $ (90,451)

Fire Department 969,795 1,049,417 (79,622)

Building and Safety 197,469 200,884 (3,418)

Public Works 1,268,409 1,297,183 {28,774)

Community Enrichment 16,413 17,795 (1,382)
Special Revenue Funds

Block Grant 86,000 118,664 (32,684)

Concession Stand - 4,218 (4,218)

Historical District 104,277 204,713 (100,436)

Fund Deficits - The City has not accumulated any fund deficits.
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Michigan Compiled Laws Section 120.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) authorizes local
governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions,
and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The local unit is allowed to invest in
bonds, securities, and other direct obligations of the United States or any agency or instrumentality of the
United States; repurchase agreements; bankers’ acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper
rated within the two highest classifications, which matures not more than 270 days after the date of
purchase; obligations of the State of Michigan or its political subdivisions, which are rated as investment
grade; and mutual funds composed of investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by local
units of government in Michigan. The investment policy adopted by the Council is in accordance with
Public Act 196 of 1997.

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be
returned to it. The government does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. The bank balance
of the City’s deposits is $2,428,625 of which $264,748 is covered by federal depository insurance and
$2,163,877 is uninsured and uncollateralized. The City evaluates each financial institution with which it -
deposits City funds and assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an
acceptable estimated risk level are used as depositories.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as a resuit of a rise in interest
rates. The City's investment policy does not restrict investment maturities, other than commerclal paper
which can only be purchased with a 270-day maiurity. At year end, the City had no investment subjected
to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

State law [imits investments in commercial paper to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations. The City has.no investment that would further limit its investment choices.
As of the end of the fiscal year, credit quality ratings are as foliows:

Investment Type Fair Value Rating Rating Organization
Fifth Third Institutional Money Market $ 428 AAAmmf Fitch
Fifth Third Institutional Gov't Money Market 670,258 AAAmmMF Fitch
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 — RECEIVABLES

JUNE 30, 2011

Receivables as of year-end for individual major funds and the nonmajor funds in the aggregate, including
the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Other Total
General Governmental Primary
Fund Funds Government
Receivables
Taxes $ 264,788 § 19,897 3 274,685
Accounts 19,299 - 198,299
Net Receivables $ 274,087 $ 19,897 § 293,984

NOTE 5 ~ CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity of the City’s governmental and business-type activities was as follows:

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets not Being Depreciated
Land

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Infrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Vehicles
Machinery and Equipment

Subtotal

Accumulated Depreciation
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles
Machinery and Equipment

Subtotal
Net Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Net Capital Assets

Batance Balance
July 1,2010  Additions Disposals  June 30, 2011

$ 1,208,430 $ 24,884 § ] 1,323,314
22 935,225 1,485,377 24,420,602
22,760,768 68,578 22,829,346
872,587 - 872 587
5,209,901 34,8189 5,244,720
51,778,481 1,688,774 53,367,255
16,140,319 896,490 17,136,809

4,706,068 455623 5,161,691

789,526 42,047 831,673
3,227 817 237,314 3,465,131
24,863,730 1,731,474 26,095,204
26,914,751 {142,700} 26,772,051
$28213181 § (117,816} $ $ 28,095 365




CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balance
July 1, 2010  Additions  Disposals

Balance
June 30, 2011

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Water and Sewer Mains $ 16,103,851 $ 966,433 $ - 3 17,070,284
Buildings 6,516,962 - - 5,516,962
Equipment and Meters 443,233 13,234 - 456,467
Vehicles 285,396 - - 285,396
Subtotal 23,349,442 979,667 - 24,329,109
‘Accumulated Depreciation
Water and Sewer Mains 9,254,606 347,857 - 9,602 463
Buildings 1,646,760 113,673 - 1,760,433
Equipment and Meters 294,049 7,235 - 302,184
Vehicles 273,570 1,971 - 275,541
Subtotal . 11,469,885 470,738 - 11,940,621
Net Capital Assets $ 11,879,567 § 508,931 $ - $ 12,388,488
Depreciation expense was charged to programs of the primary government as follows:
Governmental Actlvities
Road Maintenance and Repair $ 996490
Recreational Culture 433,133
Public Works 73,521
Police Department 36,557
Library 48,846
Fire Department 100,041
General Government 32,802
Building and Safety 10,284
Total Governmental Activities $ 1,731474
Business-Type Activities
Water and Sewer Mains $ 347857
Buildings 113,673
Equipment and Meters 7235
Vehicles 1,971
Total Business-Type Activities $ 470,736
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JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The compasition of interfund balances is as follows:

Due toffrom Other Funds
General Fund _ Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 111,639
TIFA Fund 826
Water and Sewer 2,647
Trust and Agency 76
Total General Fund $ 115,188

Nonmajor Governmental Funds Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 12,422

These balances result from the time lag between the dates that goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures oceur, transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and payments
between funds are made.

interfund transfers reported in the fund financial statements are comprised of the following:

Fund Providing Resources Fund Receiving Resources Amount
General Fund Nonmaijor Governmental Funds $ 342,188
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Nonmajor Governmental Funds 208,994
TIFA Fund ' Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1,096,648

Total $ 1,737,828

The transfers from the General Fund to the nonmajor governmental funds represent the use of
unrestricted resources to finance those programs, in accordance with budgetary authorizations; the
transfers from nonmajor governmental funds and the TIFA Fund to nonmajor governmental funds
represent transfers o Debt Service Funds.

NOTE 7 ~ LONG-TERM DEBT

The City issues bonds to provide for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. General
obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. State and county
contractual agreements and installment purchase agreements are also general obligations of the
government. Special assessment bonds provide for capital improvements that benefit specific properties,
and will be repald from amounts levied against those properties that benefited from the construction. In
the event that a deficiency exists because of unpaid or delinquent special assessments at the time a debt
service payment is due, the City is obligated to provide resources to cover the deficiency until other
resources (such as tax sale proceeds or a re-assessment of the Special Assessment District) are
received.
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued)

Leng-temn chligation ashivity can ba summarized as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTMYIES

Michigan Transporiation Fund Bonds
Amount of Issue; $800,000
Maturing Through 2013

Certificale of Pariicipation - Insleliment Purchase

Amouni of Issue: $1,500,000
Maturing Through 2013

Building Authority Refunding Bonds
Amount of Issua: $1,720,000
Maturing Through 2018

Building Autherity Bends
Amount of Issue: $5,000,000
Maluring Through 2011

Building Austhority Refurding Bands
Amount of [ssue: $3,145,000
WMaturing Through 2021

CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
NOTES Y0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

Tax Incremeni Financa Authorily - Limiled Tax Developmant Bonds

Amount of Issue; §1,750,000
Maturing Through 2026

Tex Incremenl Finance Autherily - Limited Tax Development Bonds

Amount of Issue: $4,270,000
Maturing Through 2024

Tax tncrement Finance Authority - Limited Tax Davelopment Bonds

Amoun! of 1ssue: $5,675,000
Maturing Through 2024

Equipmant Laase Purchase Agreement

Amourt of Issue; $40,375
Meaturing Throwgn 2911

Equlpmant | 1 Purchase Ag
Ameurt of |ssue; $334,000
Maturing Thraugh 2014

Cunsent Judgement for Tax Setiiemant

Amgunt of Issve: $559,630
Maturing Through 2021

Equipment Lease Furchase Agraement

Amount of |ssue: $23,051
Maturing Thraugh 2016

Capilal Improvement Bonds
Amount of [ssue: $2,500,000
Maturing Through 2025

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES

South Huron Valiay Utiity Authority
Amoun! of Issue: $1,901,130
Maluring Thraugh 2011

South Huran Valley Utiily Authocty
Amount of Issus; $3,271,516
Malysing Through 2021

South Huron Vakiey Utllity Aulborily
Amount of Issug: $2,352,760
Maluring ‘Through 2026

South Huron Vellay UtRity Autbority
Amount of issua: $409,360
Maturing Through 2030

South Huren Valley Wlily Authonty
Amount of Issua: $557,073
Maluring Through 2031

Interest
Numbar Rate Beginning Endlng Due Within
- of [ssues Ranges Balance Addillons {Reductions) Balante One Year
1 4.00% -
5.20% g 215000 5 - 8 {70,000) & 145000 % 70,000
1 4.90% -
7.07% 425,000 - {135,000} 250,000 140,000
1 2.00% -
4.40% 1,080,000 - (115,000) 975,000 126,000
1 5.92%
730,000 - {230,000} - -
1 3.9C% -
4.80% 3,320,000 - (30,000) 3,280,000 275,000
1 5.375% -
5.875% 1,530,000 - (65,000) 1,465,000 65,000
1 6.75% -
7.00% 3,600,000 - {170,000} 3,630,000 180,000
1 4.00% -
4.80% 4,620,000 - {230,000) 4,330,000 300,000
1 6.75%
17,528 - (8,519 9,009 9,009
1
4,47% 334,000 - (66,804) 267,196 65,800
1 NiA
- 659,830 - 559,630 65,963
1 6.465%
- 34,812 {4,509) 30,310 8,373
1 3.00% -
500% - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 420,000
$ 15581528 $ 3094449 § (1,184,632) $ 17491145 § 1,413,145
1 2.00%
3 124,164 § - 8 (124,164) § - § -
i 225%
1,952,232 - {158,567) 1,793,665 162,254
1 2.125%
1,858,507 - {103.248) 1,855,159 105,909
1 4.000% -
6.375% - 409,360 - 409,360 14,072
1 2.500%
- 557,073 - 557,073 21,879
$ 40343900 $ 986433 § (@B6,079) $ 4615257 § 304,905




CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
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JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Annual Debt service requirements to maturity for the above bonds and note cbligations are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Principal interest Total Principal Interest Total

2012 $ 1413145 § 819,803 § 2,232,948 3 304,105 $ 110,282 § 415,087
2013 1,458,578 756,545 2,216,123 311,623 107,143 418,766
2014 1,280,052 696,414 1,976,466 318,090 99,984 418,074
2015 1,325,558 639,117 1,964,675 326,449 92,675 419,124
2016 1,302,997 580,265 1,883.262 334,146 85,074 418,220
2017-2021 6,914,815 1,832,690 8,847,505 1,787,268 301,834 2,089,102
2022-2026 3,795,000 393,826 4,188,826 946,277 134,967 1,081,244
2027-2031 - - - 287,299 32,704 _ 320,003
$ 17491145 $ 5818660 3§ 23,303,805 $ 4615257 § 965363 § 5580620

Advance Refundings In prior years, the City defeased certain bonds by placing the proceeds of new
bonds in an irevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds.
Accordingly, the trust accounis' assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the
general purpose financial statements.

NOTE 8 ~ RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions, and
employee injuries (workers' compensation), as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The City
participates in the Michigan Municipal League risk pool for claims relating to workers’ compensation. The
City has purchased commercial insurance for property loss, torts, and errors and omissions. Settled
claims relating to the commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage in any
of the past three fiscal years.

The Michigan Municipal League risk pool program operates as a claims servicing pool for amounts up to
member retention limits and operates as a common risk-sharing management program for local units of
government in Michigan. Member premiums are used to purchase excess insurance coverage and to
pay member claims in excess of deductible amounts.



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 9 -~ DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description - The City participates in the Michigan Municipal Employees' Retirement System (the
"System"), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all employees of the City.
The System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries.
The System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required

supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the System at 1134
Municipal Way, Lansing, Ml 48917,

Trend information is as follows:
Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2009 2010 2011
Annual Pension Costs (APC) $ 571,000 § 547636 601,779
Percentage of APC Contributed 100% 100% 100%
Net Pension Obligation $ - 3 - 3 -
Actuarial Valuation as of December 31
2008 2009 2010
Actuarial Value of Assets $11,427268 $11,653,218 § 11,751,533
Actuarial Accrued Liability {AAL) $ 18,959,513 $19,012,367 § 19,479,412
Unfunded AAL {UAAL) $ 7632245 § 7459149 § 7,727.879
Funded Ratio 60.3% 60.8% 60.3%
Covered Payroll $ 3603833 $ 3608759 § 3,141,884
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroli 209% 207% 246%

At December 31, 2010, the total participants of 103 consisted of 55 active employees, 5 vested former
employees and 43 retired employees.

Funding Policy - Each member contributes a percent of annual compensation, as selected by the City.
Any percentage from 0% to 10% (in .1% increments) may be selected. A 3% to 5% coniribution program
was available prior to 1985 and may be continued, but not adopted, after 1984. Under this program the
member contributes 3% of the first $4,200 of annual compensation and 5% of portions over $4,200.

The funding method used in the actuarial valuation - the entry age normal cost method - is intended to

meet this objective and result in a relatively level long-term contribution requirement as a percentage of
salary.

Annual Pension Cost - For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City's annual pension cost of $601,779
for the plan was equal to the City's required contribution. The annual required contribufion was
determined as part of an actuarial valuation at December 31, 2010, using the entry age actuarial cost
method. Significant actuarial assumptions used include: (a) an 8 percent investment rate of return and
(b) projected salary increases of 4.5 percent per year. Both {a) and (b) include an inflation component of
4.5 percent. The actuarial value of assets is determined on the basis of a method that calculates
expected investment income at the valuation rate of return and adds a portion of the difference between
the expected investment income and actual investment income earned on a market value basis. The
difference in investment income between expected refum and market return is recognized over a 10-year
period at the rate of 10% per year. This asset valuation method was first adopted for the December 31,
2005 valuation. The unfunded actuarial fability is being amortized aver 28 years.
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NOTE 10 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the ordinary course of its operation, the City is a party to various claims, legal actions, and
complaints. These actions are not anticipated to have a significant effect on the financial condition of the
City.

Currently the City of Flat Rock has numerous matters pending before the State of Michigan Tax Tribunal
requesting the kowering of local real and personal property taxes.

NOTE 11 — JOINT VENTURES

The City is a member of the 33rd District Court (the "Court”), which provides judicial services to the
member communities. The City appoints one member to the joint venture’s governing board, who then
approves the annual budget. The Court receives its operating revenue principally from fines and fees, in
addition to annual funding contributions from member communities. During the current year, the City
contributed $463,202 to the Court, representing the City's share of the Court's net activity. The City is
unaware of any circumstances that would cause an additional benefit or burden to the participating
communities in the near future, other than the fluctuation of case loads, which impacts the City's share of
the Court debt. Complete financial statements for the Court can be obtained from the administrative
offices at: 19000 Van Horn Road, Woodhaven, Mi 48183,

The City is a member of the South Huron Valley Utility Authority, which provides sanitary sewage disposal
services. Each of the eight member communities appoints one member to the Board. The Authority
receives its operaiing revenue through charges to the communities. The City's share of the debt of the
joint venture is being financed by the City through debt service charges. During the year ended June 30,
2011, the City incurred operating costs of $760,741. In addition, the City paid $386,079 in principal
payments and $94,238 in interest expense. Complete financial statements for the Authority can be
obtained from the administrative offices at 34001 West Jefferson, Brownstown, Mt 48173

NOTE 12 — DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City has a Deferred Compensation Plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section
457. The Plan is administered by an independent plan administrator. The Plan is available to all City
employees. Employees defer a portion of their salary until future years. Deferred compensation is not
available to employees until termination, retirement, death or financial hardship.

The Deferred Compensation Plan is recorded in the Fiduclary Fund. The Plan’s assets are presented at

fair market value and captioned as "investments" with corresponding liabilities captioned "deferred
compensation henefits”.

-33-



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 13 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description - The City provides postemployment health, dental and vision benefits to all eligibte full-
time retired employees and their beneficiaries. The City pays the full cost of coverage for these benefits.
The City includes pre-Medicare retirees and their dependents in its insured health care plan, with no
contribution reguired by the participant (other than specific co-pays). The City purchases Medicare
supplemental insurance for retirees eligible for Medicare. Currently, 36 refirees are eligible for post-
employment heaith benefits. The government obtains health care coverage through private insurers.

This is a single employer defined benefit plan administered by the City. The benefits are provided under
collective bargaining agreements. The plan does not issue a separate stand-alone financial statement.
Administrative costs are paid by the employer.

Funding Policy - The collective bargaining agreements do not require a contribution from employees.
Retiree health care costs are recognized when paid by the City on a "pay-as-you-go" basis. The City has
no obligation to make contributions in advance of when the insurance premiums are due for payment.

Funding Progress - For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City has estimated the cost of providing
retiree healthcare benefits through an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2009. The valuation computes
an annual required contribution, which represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not

fo exceed 30 years. This valuation's computed contribution and actual funding are summarized as
follows:

Annual Required Contribution {Recommended} $ 1,035,327
Interest on the Prior Year's Net OPEB Obligation 53,216
Less Adjustment to the Annual Reguired Contribufion {76,771)

Annual OPEB cost 1,011,772

Amounts Contributed
Payments of Current Premiums 378,969
Advance Funding -

Increase in net OPEB Obligation 632,803
{QPEB Ohligation - Beginning of Year 1,277,368

OPEB Obligation - End of Year $ 1,910,171
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NOTE 13 — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

The schedule of employer contributions and the net OPEB obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011, 2010 and 2009 are as follows (three-year trend is not available because 2009 is the initlal year of
reporting):

Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009
Annual OPEB Costs 1,011,772 $ 993,266 $ 971,991
Percentage Contributed 37.456% 32.579% 37.479%
Net OPEB Obligation 1,910,171 1,277,368 607,696

The Funding Progress of the Plan as of the Most Recent Valuation Date is as follows:

Valuation as of December 31, 2009

Actuarial Value of Assets 3 -
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 14,510,603
Unfunded AAL 14,510,603
Funded Ratio 0%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Actuarial vaiuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the pian and the annual required contributions of the

employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. '

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of shori-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value
of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation, the individual entry age actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4.0 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses),
which is the expected long-term investment returns on pian assets, and an annual healthcare cost trend
for medical and drug costs of 10.0 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5.0
percent after ten years, with an annual healthcare cost trend rate for dental and vision costs of 5.0
percent, which remains unchanged. Both rates included a 4.0 percent inflation assumption. The UAAL is
being amortized as a level percent of payroll if the divisions are open to new hires and as a level dollar if
the divisions are closed fo new hires. -
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Amended With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES .
Property Taxes $ 5810147 $ 5,810,147 § 5286470 § (523,677)
Elections - - 4,539 4,539
General Government 200,700 200,700 210,715 10,015
Police Department 502,810 502,810 421,757 (81,053
Fire Department 261,150 261,150 221,112 {40,038)
Building and Safefy
Building Permits 97,300 97,300 84 485 {12,815;
Electrical Permits 20,000 - 20,000 23,724 3,724
Plumbing Permits 20,000 20,000 15,950 {4,050)
Mechanical Permits 10,000 10,000 19,835 9,835
Other Revenues 9,200 9,200 52,955 43,755
Public Works 285,550 285,550 304,528 18,976
Recreation and Culture 120,534 120,534 120,150 (384}
Community Enrichment and Development 117,510 117,510 131,553 14,043
State Shared Revenues 661,591 661,591 692,472 30,881
Total Revenues 8,116,482 8,116,492 7,590,243 {526,2489)
EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislative :
Elected Officials Wages 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Judicial
L.egai Fees 60,000 60,000 58,752 1,248
District Court 500,000 500,000 463,202 36,798
Tatal Judicial 560,000 560,000 521,954 38,046
Elections
Supervisory 8,000 8,000 8,473 (473)
Clerical 15,000 15,000 15,180 (190)
Overtime 2,500 2,500 2,514 (14)
Payroll Tax 1,951 1,851 1,437 514
Fees and Per Diem 10,000 10,000 9,204 796
Office Supplies . 3,000 3,000 1,812 1,188
Operating Supplies 4,000 4,000 9,445 (5,445)
Meal Allowance 300 300 299 1
Advertising 1,500 1,500 1,791 (291)
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JLNE 30, 2011

{Continued)
Variance
Qriginal Amended With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued) '
Elections (Continued)
Insurance and Bond 3 693 $ 693 $ 647 % 48
Equipment Maintenance 3,000 3,000 1,961 1,039
Total Elections 49 944 49,944 52,773 (2,829)
General Operations

Custodian 19,092 18,092 36,583 (17,491)
Mechanic 250 250 22 228
Overtime Custodian 3,000 3,000 2,937 63
Overtime Park Maintenance 1,500 1,600 707 - 793
Payroll Taxes 1,824 1,824 3,151 (1,327}
Fees and Per Diem 200 200 550 (350)
Office Supplies 5,000 5,000 3,226 1,774
Bank Charges 2,000 2,000 242 1,758
Gasoline and O, eic. 2,000 2,000 1,209 791
Youth Services 1,090 1,090 767 323
Operating Supplies 1,000 1,000 556 444
Computer Expense 5,000 5,000 3,248 1,752
Clothing 700 700 863 (163)
Custodian Supplies 2,500 2,500 1,507 © 993
Paond Sprinklers 7,200 7.200 2,371 4,829
Audit Fee 11,286 11,286 12,130 (844)
Tax Roll Preparation 15,000 15,000 16,023 {1,023}
Membership and Dues 16,500 16,500 15,376 1,124
Telephone 9,000 9,000 2,403 6,597
Meals on Wheels - - 3,917 (3,917)
Senior Programs - - 6,459 (6,459)
Meal Allowance 100 100 240 (140)
Public Relations 500 500 649 (149)
Advertising 1,000 1,000 3,785 (2,785)
Insurance and Bond 24334 24 334 10,911 13,423
Insurance Claims Deductible 500 500 - 500
Utilities 38,081 38,081 32,168 5913
Building Maintenance 80,000 80,000 28,711 51,289
Equipment Mainlenance 3,000 3,000 1,260 1,740
Equipment Lease 5,000 5,000 5,313 (313}
Civil Defense 2,500 2,500 3,291 {791)
Miscellaneous 1,000 1,000 352 648
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

(Continued})
Variance
Original Amended With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Genral Operations (Continued)
Taxes Refunded and Wiitten Off $ 1205200 $ 1295200 §$ 111186 $ 1,184,014
Land Acquisition - - 24 884 (24,884)
Total General Operations 1,555,357 1,555,357 336,097 1,218,360
City Assessor
Assessor Salary 10,350 10,350 10,350 -
Clerical 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Overtime 700 700 641 59
Payroll Taxes 819 819 814 5
Fees and Per Diem 1,200 1,200 1,200 -
Office Supplies 300 300 274 26
Computer Expense 250 250 2,760 (2,510)
Tax Roli Preparation 13,500 13,500 15,240 (1,740}
Membership and Dues 100 100 - 100
Meal Allowance . 50 50 - 50
Advertising 100 100 126 (28)
Education and Training 1,500 1,500 - 1,500
Insurance and Bond ' 672 672 630 42
Miscellanecus 100 100 - 100
Total City Assessor 39641 39,641 42,035 (2,394)
City Attorney :
Refainer 19,800 19,800 19,800 -
Labor 75,000 75,000 80,894 (5,894)
Cther Matters 1,500 1,500 23,423 (21,923)
Total City Attorney 96,300 96,300 124,117 _(27.817)
City Clerk
Supervisory 15,894 15,894 30,576 (14,882)
Clerical 17,759 17,759 24,362 (6,603)
Overtime - - 191 {181)
Payroll Taxes 2,620 2,620 5,001 {2,381)
Hospitalization 21,253 21,253 - 21,253
Retiree Health insurance - - 24,926 (24,926)
Employee Life Insurance - - 144 (144)
Retirement Contribution 433 433 1,158 (725)
Sick and Vacation Pay 500 500 - 500
Fees and Per Diem 250 250 - 250
Cifice Supplies 1,500 1,500 2170 (670)
Operating Supplies , 1,500 1,500 373 1,127
Medical Expenses 100 100 177 {(77)
Computer Expenses 3,000 3,000 3,582 (582)



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

{Continued}
Variance
Original Amended With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued) '
City Clerk {Confinued)
Membership and Dues $ 350 % 350 5 210 & 140
Telephone 1,500 1,500 2,149 {649)
Meal Allowance 100 100 - 100
Reimburse Employee's Blue Cross 600 600 - 600
Advertising 300 300 - 300
Education and Training 1,500 1,500 - 1,500
Insurance and Bond 3,090 3,090 11,204 (8,114)
Utilities : 5,000 5,000 3,211 1,789
Miscellaneous 500 500 336 164
Total City Clerk 77,749 77,749 108,770 {32,021)
City Treasurer
Supervisory 29,243 29,243 31,546 {2,303)
Clerical 75,319 75,319 71,484 3,835
Cvertime 1,000 1,000 552 448
Payroll Taxes 8,076 8,076 9,612 (1,536)
Hospitalization 71,483 71,483 51,518 19,964
Retiree Health Insurance _ - - 20,554 (20,554)
Employee Life Insurance 768 768 727 41
Longevity Pay BOO 800 800 -
Retirement Contribution 31,252 31,252 32,321 (1,069)
Sick and Vacation Pay 500 500 (4,810} 5,310
Fees and Per Diem 250 250 - 250
Office Supplies 1,500 1,600 815 885
Operating Supplies 1,500 1,500 240 1,260
Computer Expenses 3,000 3,000 5,291 (2,291)
Property Engineering Fees 600 600 650 (50}
Membership and Dues 345 345 255 80
Telephone 1,500 1,500 2,226 (726)
Meal Allowance 100 100 60 . 40
Adveriising 300 300 - 300
Education and Training 1,500 1,500 737 763
Insurance and Bond 3,100 3,100 4,200 {1,100}
Utilities 5,000 5,000 3,344 1,656
Miscellanecus 500 500 238 262
237,636 237,636 232,161 5475
City Engineer
Consulting Fees 4,000 4,000 - 4,000
Total General Government 2,630,627 2,630,627 1,429,807 1,200,820




CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

{Continued)
Variance
Original Amended With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
POLICE DEPARTMENT

Supervisory 3 71687 $ 71687 % 76,034 § (4,347
Lieutenants 266,535 266,535 359,606 {93,071)
Sergeants 380,911 380,911 255,431 125,480
Patrolmen 511,056 511,056 582 906 {71,850)
Downriver Mutual Aid 2,000 2,000 2,889 (389)
Mechanic Wages 17,500 17,500 21,035 (3,535)
Custodian Wages 25,000 25,000 24,698 302
Temporary Wages 26,775 26,775 26,084 691
Shift Differential 14,000 14,000 9,322 4,678
Overtime 95,000 95,000 112,313 {17,313)
Payroll Taxes 121872 121,672 132,783 (11,111)
Holiday Pay Premium 59,000 59,000 95,873 (36,873)
Hospitalization 451,150 451,160 244763 206,387
Retirement Health Insurance - - 187,070 {187.070)
Employee Life Insurance 3,840 3,840 3,681 159
Longevity Pay 13,500 13,500 14,311 (811)
Refirement Contribution 243,276 243,276 297,606 (54,330)
Sick and Vacation Pay 1,500 1,500 58,184 (56,684)
Office Supplies 4,800 4,800 3,056 1,744
Fostage ' 1,500 1,500 596 904
Dog Expenses 5,500 5,500 1,615 3,885
Canine Expenses 2,000 2,000 549 1,451
Gas and Oil 45,000 45,000 39,403 5,597
Operating Supplies 6,000 6,000 1,839 4,161
Photographic Supplies 1,500 1,500 - 1,500
Medical Expenses 5,660 5,660 2,087 3,673
Jail Expenses 23,300 23,300 13,081 10,209
Prisoner Medical 250 250 573 (323)
Computer Expense 15,000 15,000 9,488 6,502
Clothing 29,700 29,700 27,587 2,113
Custodial Supplies 4,500 4,500 2232 2,268
Membership Dues 2,100 2,100 875 1,225
Legal Fees 4,000 4,000 10,008 (6,008)
Telephone 19,280 19,280 20,910 (1,830)
Meal Allowance 1,500 1,500 1,030 470
Gun Allowance 5,700 5,700 6,000 £300)
Gun Range 9,000 9,000 41477 4,823
Public Relations 1,000 1,000 566 434
Reimburse Employee's Blue Cross 72120 72,120 47,350 24,770
Education and Training 11,000 11,000 1,211 9,789
Insurance and Bonds 81,042 81,942 80,984 958
Insurance Claims Deductible 500 500 - 500
Utilities 38,000 38,000 30,018 7,082
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

BUDGETARY CONMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

POLICE DEPARTMENT (Continued)

Building Maintenance
Equipment Maintenance
Equipment Lease

Auto Maintenanhce
Equipment Rental
Mutual Aid
Miscellaneous

Interest

Total Police Department

FIRE DEPARTMENT
Chief Salary
Assistant Chief Salary
Mechanic
Custodian
Dveriime
Full-Time Employees
Part-Time Employees
Retroactive Pay
Payroll Taxes
Holiday Pay Premium
Hospitalization
Employee Life Insurance
Longevity Pay
Retirement Contribution
Sick and Vacation Pay
Office Supplies
Bank Charges
Operating Supplies
Gas and Qil
Operating Supplies
Medical Expenses
Clothing
Custodial Supplies
Ambulance Billing Service
Membership and Dues
Legal Fees
Telephone
Meal Allowance
Public Relation
Adveriising
Education and Training

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2011

(Continued)
Variance
QOriginal Amended With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
$ 8,000 3 8000 $ 4140 % 3,860
20,000 20,000 17,870 2,130
12,000 12,000 6,763 5,237
24,000 24,000 16,514 7,486
5,000 5,000 1,482 3,508
4,100 4,100 4,083 17
2,500 2,500 1,599 801
1,000 1,000 - 1,000
2,771,854 2,771,854 2,862,305 {90,451)
51,033 51,033 54,019 (2,986}
3,537 3,637 3,634 (97)
4,250 4,250 4,313 (63)
7,000 7,000 8,144 {1,144)
15,000 15,000 61,788 (46,788)
239,148 239,148 234,963 4,185
150,000 150,000 173,293 (23,293)
30,000 30,000 21,529 8,471
35,676 39,676 43,562 (3,888)
15,000 15,000 23,522 (8,522)
108,365 108,365 113,003 (4,638)
1,138 1,138 1,138 -
2,175 2,175 2,325 {150)
52,212 52,212 45,081 7,131
500 500 (78) 578
1,000 1,000 1,912 {912)
560 500 - 500
13,000 13,000 7,568 5,432
7,000 7,000 7,266 (266)
4,000 4,000 5,323 (1,323)
4,000 4,000 1,566 2,434
4,000 4,000 4,733 (733)
800 600 359 201
16,000 16,000 17,734 {1,734)
2,500 2,500 3,286 {786)
1,000 1,000 - 1,000
4,600 4,600 4,671 {71}
300 300 116 184
1,000 1,000 559 441
500 500 117 383
4,000 4,000 3,270 730
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

{Continued})

Variance
Original Amended With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
FIRE DEPARTMENT (Caontinued)
Educational Services $ 4000 % 4,000 § 4158 § (158)
Insurance and Bond 52,995 52,995 70,071 (17.076)
Utilities 27,826 27,826 20,871 6,955
Building Maintenance 5,000 5,000 8,049 (3,049)
Equipment Maintenance 15,000 15,000 15,711 (711)
Mutual Aid 1,700 1,700 1,560 140
Bond Principal 66,799 66,799 66,804 (5)
Interest 13,441 13,441 13,437 4
Total Fire Department 069,795 969,795 1,049,417 (79,622)
BUILDING AND SAFETY

Supervisory 44,978 44,978 33,414 ‘ 11,564
Mechanic 250 250 - 332 (82)
Clerical 32,785 32,785 35,0980 (2,305)
Inspector 32,710 32,710 22,253 10457
Overtime 500 500 133 367
Payroll Taxes 8,509 8,509 8,681 {172)
Hospitalization 20,544 20,544 14,468 6,076
Retiree Health Insurance - - 6,866 (6,866)
Employee Life Insurance 190 190 332 {142)
Longevity Pay - - 400 (400}
Retirement Confribution 1,734 1,734 21,720 (19,986)
Sick and Vacation Pay 500 500 19,906 {19,406)
Office Supplies 1,800 1,500 1,500 -
Gas and Oil 1,500 1,500 1,460 40
Operating Supplies 1,000 1,000 1,455 (455)
Computer Expense 1,500 1,500 3,554 (2,054)
Clothing 100 100 - " 100
Membership and Dues 1,000 1,000 527 473
Consultant Fees 1,000 1,000 113 887

Inspections
Mechanical 5,000 5,000 4,520 480
Electrical 10,000 10,000 5,595 4,405
Plumbing 10,000 10,000 3,338 6,662
Telephone 5,600 5,600 4,355 1,245
Auto Expense 2,000 2,000 610 1,380
Meal Allowance 100 100 20 80
Advertising 150 150 - 150
Education and Training 250 250 - - 250
Insurance and Bond 8,760 8,760 6,895 1,865
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CITY OF FLLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

(Continued)
- Variance
Original Amended : With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
BUILDING AND SAFETY {Continued)

Utilities $ 5059 § 5,088 § 3,176 3§ 1,883
Miscellaneous 250 250 171 78

Total Building and Safety 197,469 197,469 200,884 {3,415)

PUBLIC WORKS

Supervisory 28,913 28,913 31,330 (2,417)
Labor 104,163 104,163 102,456 1,707
Mechanic 17,098 17,098 23,599 {6,501)
Temporary 19,280 19,280 7,515 11,765
Overtime 10,000 10,000 7,914 2,086
Overtime Department Heads 2,000 2,000 384 1,616
Payroll Taxes 15,632 15,532 17,889 {2,357}
Hospitalization 236,495 236,495 176,479 60,016
Retiree Health Insurance - - 96,303 {96,303)
Employee Life Insurance 2,086 2,086 2,559 (473)
Longevity Pay 5,850 5,850 5,486 364
Retirement Contribution 77,458 77,458 84,764 (7,306)
Sick and Vacation Pay - - {7,018) 7,018
Office Supplies 1,000 1,000 1,335 (335)
Gas and Qil 45,000 45,000 33,645 11,355
Operating Supplies 12,000 12,000 1,837 10,163
Medical Expernises 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Computer Expenses 750 750 1,509 {759)
Clothing 8,525 8,525 0,814 (1,089)
Custodial Supplies 1,000 1,000 203 797
Brick Pavers War Memorial 100 100 ' - 100
Membership and Dues 200 200 225 {(25)
Consulting Fees 500 500 - 500
Garhage Pick Up 345,000 345,000 353,854 (8,854)
Street Lighting 160,000 160,000 191,386 (31,386)
Telephone 5,000 5,000 6,056 (1,058)
Meal Allowance 500 500 443 57
Reimburse Employee's Blue Cross 7,200 7,200 7,200 -
Advertising 100 100 22 78
Education and Tralning 1,000 1,000 85 915
Safety Training 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Insurance and Bond 41,672 41,672 33,381 8,291
Utilities 25,000 25,000 16,293 8,707
Building Maintenance 10,000 10,000 9,813 187
Cemetery Maintenance 1,500 1,500 1,572 (72)
Equipment Maintenance 55,000 55,000 43,721 ' 11,279
Equipment Lease 9,187 9,187 27,552 {18,365)
Park Maintenance 10,000 10,000 5,619 4,381
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

A4-

{Continued)
Variance
Original Amended With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
PUBLIC WORKS (Continued)

Miscelianeous $ 500 500 206 % 294

Capital Outlay - - - -

Interest 6,800 6,800 1,952 4,848

Total Public Works 1,268,409 1,268,409 1,297,183 (28,774)
RECREATION AND CULTURE

Recreation Committee
Park Improvement 3,500 3,500 - 3,500

Recreation
Supervisory 17,351 17,351 16,956 395
Contracted Instructors 500 500 - 500
Mechanic 1,000 1,000 1,283 (283)
Clerical 200 200 200
Temporary 15,000 15,000 9,136 5,864
Bus Transportation 15,500 15,500 4,526 10,974
Programmers 34,646 34,646 32,610 2,036
Payroll Taxes 6,609 6,609 5,957 652
Hospitatization 7,222 7,222 7,150 72
Employee Life Insurance 190 190 205 {15)
Longevity Pay 400 400 450 (50)
Retirement Coniribution 13,301 13,301 14,087 (788)
Sick and Vacation Pay 300 300 1,885 {1,595)
Office Supplies 1,000 1,000 976 24
Postage 500 500 793 {293)
Gas and Oil 5,500 5,500 4,675 925
Operating Supplies 600 600 68 532
Playground Equipment 200 200 263 (63)
Computer Expense 2,000 2,000 3,200 (1,200)
Clothing 50 50 19 31
Membership and Dues 500 500 752 {252)
Consulting Fees 150 150 - 150
Telephone 4,200 4,200 1,676 2,524
Travel Expense 40,000 40,000 38,631 1,369
Adult Softball 6,000 6,000 3,023 2,077
Safety Town 100 100 - 100
Youth Programs 5,000 5,000 7,577 (2,577)
Senior Programs 5,626 5,626 918 4,710
Adult Programs 5,000 5,000 1,315 3,685
MRPA Programs 7,000 7,000 5,915 1,085
Meal Allowance 50 50 10 40
Public Relations 100 100 43 57
Reimburse Employee's Blue Cross 1,800 1,800 1,800 -
Advertising 1,500 1,600 998 502



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

RECREATION AND CULTURE (Continued)

Recreation {Continued)
Education and Training
Insurance and Bond
Equipment Mainienance
Miscellaneous

Total Recreation

Ball Field, Fountain and lce Rink

Ball Field Maintenance

tce Rink Maintenance
Overtime Department Heads
Payroll Taxes

Ball Field Material and Supplies
Ice Rink Material and Supplies

Meal Allowance
Insurance and Bond
Bail Field Utilities
[ce Rink Utilities
Rent

Total Ball Field, Fountain and Ice Rink

Total Recreation and Culture

COMMUNITY ENRICHMENT AND DEVELOPMENT

Planning Commission
Clerical
Overtime
Payroll Taxes
Fees and Per Diem
Special Meetings
Office Supplies
Consultant Fees
Master Plan
Advertising
Revision of Ordinances
Education and Training
Insurance and Bond

Total Planning Commission

{Continued)
Variance
Original Amended With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
3 200 % 200 - % 200
5,803 5,803 5,129 674
1,500 1,500 2,466 {966}
500 500 389 111
207,098 207,098 176,589 30,509
40,000 40,000 35,350 4,650
2,000 2,000 6,120 (4,120}
3,213 3,213 2,880 323
10,000 10,000 10,758 (758)
1,000 1,000 476 524
100 100 - 100
1,914 1,914 1,627 387
8,000 8,000 12,547 (4,547)
1,000 1,000 - 8,519 {5,519)
410,116 410,118 412,454 (2,338)
477,343 477,343 488,641 ~(11,298)
687,941 687,941 665,230 22711
500 500 500 -
500 500 182 318
77 77 52 25
1,500 1,500 1,765 (265)
250 250 - 250
100 100 188 {88)
4,000 4,000 6,819 (2,919)
500 500 - 500
500 500 254 246
500 500 - 500
100 100 - 100
672 672 630 42
9,199 9,199 10,490 {1.291)
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

(Continued)
Variance
Original Amended With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
COMMUNITY ENRICHMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
Zoning Board of Appeals
Clerical 3 - 3 - 3 1,000 $ {1,000
Overtime - 100 100 187 (87)
Payroll Taxes 8 8 14 [(5)]
Fees and Per Diem 400 400 285 115
Office Supplies 100 100 224 {(124)
Consultant 500 500 926 (426)
Advertising 500 500 110 380
Education and Training 50 50 - 50
Insurance and Bond 672 872 630 42
Total Zoning Board of Appeals 2,330 2,330 3,376 ~{1,046)
Beaultification
Clerical 500 500 500 -
Payroll Taxes 38 38 - 38
Fees and Per Diem 1,260 1,260 1,194 66
Office Supplies 100 100 67 33
Public Relations 750 750 750 -
Insurance and Bond 624 624 170 454
Total Beautification 3,272 3,272 2,681 591
Cable Commission
Fees and Per Diem 800 800 850 150
Insurance and Bond 212 212 598 {386)
Equipment Maintenance 500 500 - 500
Miscellaneous 100 100 - 100
Total Cable Commission 1,612 1,612 1,248 364
Total Community Enrichment
and Development 16,413 16,413 17,785 {1,382)
Total Expenditures 8,642 508 8,542,508 7,622,621 1,019,887
Excess Revenues (Expenditures) (426,016) (426,016) 67,622 483,638
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CITY OF FLAT ROCHK, MICHIGAN
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

{Continued)
Variance
Original Amended With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Interfund Transfers .
Special Revenue Funds $ 180,000 $ 180,000 $ 113,000 § (67,000}
Debt Service Funds - - 14,810 14,810
Capital Project Funds - - 766
Special Revenue Funds {275,000) {275,000) {182,494) 92,506
Debt Service Funds {229,924) (229,924) {159,694) 70,230
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) (324,924) (324,924) (213,612) 111,342
Excess Revenues and Other Sources
QOver {(Under) Expenditures and Cther (750,940) {750,940} (145,990) 604,950
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2010 743,030 743,030 743,030
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2011 3 (7,910) § (7,810) $ 597040 3 604,950
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - MIAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Amended With Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Taxes Captured $ 4,692,630 $4692630 $3,728930 § {963,700)
Other 20,500 20,500 30,717 10,217
Interest 10,000 10,000 561 (9,439)
Total Revenues 4,723,130 4,723,130 3,760,208 (962,922)
EXPENDITURES
Supervisory 1,000 1,000 1,000 -
Clerical 1,000 1,000 1,000 -
Secretary 600 600 800 -
Economic Devefopment 14,050 14,050 11,767 2,283
Bank Charges 1,000 1,000 - 49 .951
Audit 1,000 1,000 1,000 -
Street Lighting 9,000 9,000 10,380 (1,380)
Maintenance Gateway 40,000 40,000 24177 15,823
Landscaping and Signs - - 3,745 (3,745)
Engineering Fees 5,000 5,000 - 5,000
Legal 9,000 9,000 3,720 5,280
Advertising 200 200 72 128
Insurance and Bond 750 750 432 318
Miscellaneous 500 500 - 500
Tax Refund 3,472,546 3,472,546 2,684,830 787,716
Total Expenditures 3,555,646 3,555,646 2,742,772 812,874
Excess Revenues 1,167,484 1,167,484 1,017,436 {150,048)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
interfund Transfers
Recreation Center Operations {75,000) (75,000) (15,000) 60,000
Debt Service Funds ~ (1,167,938) {1,167,938) {1,081,646) 86,292
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {1,242,938) (1,242,938) (1,096,646) 146,292
Excess Revenues and Other Sources Cver
(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (75454 (75,454) (79,210) (3,756)
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2010 173,354 173,354 173,354 -
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2011 $ 97900 § 97900 $ 94144 § (3,756)




OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivable - Taxes

Due From Other Funds

Prepaid Expenditures

Due From Other Governmental Units

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses
Compensated Absences, Current
Due {o Other Funds

Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCE
Restricted for Debt Service
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

JUNE 30, 2011

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

-40-

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service  Project
Funds Funds Funds Total

$1406482 § 3,930 & - $1410412
19,897 - - 19,897
12,122 - - 12,122
6,496 - - 6,456
162,447 - - 152,447
$1,5907444 $ 3930 § - $1,601,374
$ 75832 % - § - § 75632
178,074 - - 178,074
7,722 - - 7,722
123,761 - - 123,761
385,189 - - 385,189
- 3,930 - 3,930
1,212,255 - - 1,212,255
1,212,255 3,930 - 1,216,185
$1597444 § 3930 3§ - $1,601,374




CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJSOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Recreation and Culiure
Federal Shared Revenue
State Shared Revenue
Rental Income
-Other
interest

Totaf Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Road Maintenance and Repair
Recreation and Culture
Community Enrichment and Development
Library
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Expenditures
Excess Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {(USES)
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2010

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2011

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Project
Funds Funds Funds Total

$1,057,806 % - % - $1,057,808
1,316,912 - - 1,316,912
118,664 - - 118,664
434,142 - - 434,142

- 434,938 - 434,938

89,204 - - 89,204
363 - - 363
3,017,091 434,938 - 3,452,029
481,751 - - 481,781
1,345,104 - - 1,345,104
767,750 - - 767,750
429,256 - - 429,256

- 1,105,000 - 1,105,000

- 795,179 - 795179

- 3,329 - 3,329
3,023,861 1,803,508 - 4,927 369
(8,770) {1,468,570) - (1,475,340)
272,623 1,336,629 - 1,609,252
(283.,417) (14,810) {767) (298,994)
{10,784) 1,321,819 _(767) 1,310,258
{17,564) {146,751) (767) (165,082)
1,229,819 150,681 767 1,381,267
$1,212255 § 3930 § - $1,216,185
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES
Interest

EXPENDITURES
Community Enrichment and Development

Excess Revenues

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating Transfers Out

Excess of Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Uses

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2010

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2011

55~

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Sidewalk
Fund
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE

AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

1897 Michigan Transportation Fund Bonds

Dated August 1, 1997
Amount of Bond - $800,000
Principal Due August 1

FISCAL INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL TOTAL
YEAR DUE AUG 1 DUE FEB 1 INTEREST ANOUNT REQUIREMENT
1112 $ 3,736 $ 1,950 $ 5,685 $ 70,000 5 75,685
12-13 1,850 - 1,850 75,000 76,950

$ 5,685 8§ 1,950 $ 7,635 $ 145,000 3 152,838

City of Flat Rock, County of Wayne, State of Michigan, Certificates of Participation, Series 1997
{City of Flat Rock Instaliment Purchase)

Dated May 8, 1998

Amount of Bond - $1,500,000

Principal Due September 1

FISCAL INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL TOTAL
YEAR DUE AUG 1 DUE FEB 1 INTEREST AMOUNT REQUIREMENT
11-12. $ 7,669 $ 3,915 3 11,484 $ 140,000 $ 151,484
12-13 3,915 - 3,815 160,000 163,915

$ 11,484 $ 3,915 3 15,399 $ 290,000 § 305,399




CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE

AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

Building Authority Bond Series 2004
Authority Refunding Bond

Dated January 2004

Amount of Bond - $1,720,000
Principal Due September 1

FISCAL INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL TOTAL
YEAR DUE AUG 1 DUE FEB 1 INTEREST AMOUNT REQUIRENMENT
11-12 3 19,571 5 17,446 3 37,017 $ 125,000 3 162,017
12-13 17,446 16,074 32,520 130,000 162,520
13-14 15,074 12,571 27,645 130,000 157,645
14-15 12,571 9,736 22,307 140,000 162,307
15-16 9,736 6,691 16,427 145,000 161,427
16-17 6,691 3,410 10,101 150,000 160,101
17-18 3,410 - 3,410 155,000 158,410

$ 84,499 5 64,928 $ 149,427 $ 975,000 $ 1,124,427

Building Authority Bond Series 2006

Dated September 6, 2006

Amount of Bond - $3,415,000

Principal Due August 1

FISCAL INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL TOTAL
YEAR DUE AUG 1 DUE FER 1 INTEREST AMOUNT REQUIREMENT
11-12 $ 71,503 $ 66,003 $ 137,508 $ 275000 $ 412,506
12-13 66,003 60,403 126,408 280,000 408,406
13-14 60,403 54,282 114,685 285,000 409,685
14-15 54,282 47,801 102,083 305,000 407,083
15-16 47,801 40,921 88,722 320,000 408,722
16-17 40,821 33,593 74,514 335,000 409,514
17-18 33,593 25,830 50,423 345,000 404,423
18-19 25,830 17,730 43,560 360,000 403,560
19-20 17,730 9,085 26,815 380,000 406,815
20-21 9,085 - 9,085 395,000 404,085

$ 427,151 $ 355648 $ 782,799 $ 3,280,000 $ 4,072,799
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CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE

AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

City of Flat Rock Tax Increment Finance Auihority
2005 Limited Tax Development Bonds

Dated March 1, 2005

Amount of Bond - $1,750,000

Principaf Due October 1

FISCAL INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL TOTAL

YEAR DUE AUG 1 DUE FEB1 iINTEREST AMOUNT REQUIREMENT
11-12 $ 42,219 $ 40,472 $ 82,691 $ 65,000 B 147,691
12-13 40,472 38,591 79,063 70,000 149,083
13-14 38,591 36,575 75,166 75,000 150,166
14-15 36,675 34,513 71,088 75,000 146,088
15-16 34,512 32,313 66,825 80,000 146,825
16-17 32,312 29,816 62,128 86,000 147,128
17-18 29,816 27,172 56,988 90,000 148,988
18-19 27172 24,381 51,553 95,000 146,653
19-20 24,381 21,444 45,825 100,000 145,825
20-21 21,444 18,359 39,803 106,000 144,803
21-22 18,359 15,128 33,487 110,000 143,487
22-23 15,128 11,603 26,731 120,000 146,731
23-24 11,603 7,931 19,534 125,000 144,534
24-25 7,931 4,113 12,044 130,000 142,044
25-26 4,113 - 4,113 140,000 144,113

$ 384,628 § 342411 $ 727,039 $ 1,465,000 $ 2,192,039

-G8~



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

City of Flat Rock Tax Increment Finance Authority

Limited Tax Development Bonds Series 2006A (Taxable Obligation)
Dated August 3, 2008

Amount of Bond - $4,270,000

Principal Due October 1

FISCAL INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL TOTAL
YEAR DUE AUG 1 DUE FEB 1 INTEREST AMOUNT REQUIREMENT
1112 $ 124,848 $ 118,772 $ 243,620 $ 180,000 $ 423,620
12-13 118,772 112,191 230,963 . 195,000 425,963
13-14 112,191 105,104 217,295 210,000 427,285
14-156 105,104 97,678 202,782 220,000 422,782
15-16 97.678 89,748 187,426 235,000 422,426
16-17 89,748 81,141 170,888 255,000 425,889
17-18 81,141 71,759 152,900 270,000 422,900
18-19 71,759 61,681 133,440 200,000 423,440
19-20 61,681 50,909 112,590 310,000 422,590
20-21 50,909 39,441 80,350 330,000 420,350
21-22 39,441 27,105 66,546 365,000 421,546
22-23 27,105 14,074 41,179 375,000 416,179
23-24 14,074 - 14,074 405,000 419,074

§ 994451 $ 869,603 3 1,864,054 $ 3,630,000 3 5,494,054

-59-



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE

AS OF JUNE 30, 201

City of Flat Rock Tax Increment Finance Authority

Limited Tax Development Bonds Series 2006B (Taxable Obligation)
Dated August 3, 2006

Amount of Bond - $5,675,000

Principal Due October 1

FISCAL INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL TOTAL
YEAR DUE AUG 1 DUE FEB 1 INTEREST AMOUNT REQUIREMENT
11-12 $ 97261 § 91,073 $ 188,334 $ 300,000 $ 488,334
12-13 91,073 84,886 175,959 300,000 475,969
13-14 84,886 78,404 163,280 305,000 468,290
14-15 78,404 71,817 150,221 310,000 460,221
15-16 71,817 64,926 136,743 315,000 451,743
16-17 64,926 57,726 122,652 320,000 442,652
17-18 57,726 50,301 108,027 330,000 438,027
18-19 50,301 42,764 93,0865 335,000 428,065
19-20 42,764 34,786 77,650 345,000 ' 422,550
20-21 34,786 26,576 61,362 355,000 416,362
2122 26,576 18,026 44,602 360,000 404,602
22-23 18,026 8,120 27,146 375,000 402,146
23-24 - 9,120 - 9,120 380,000 389,120

$§ 727,668 $ 630,405 $ 1,358,071 $ 4,330,000 $ 5,688,071

-B0~



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FAYABLE
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

City of Flat Rock Tax Increment Finance Authority

Limited Tax Development Bonds Serles 20068 (Taxable Obligation)
Dated August 3, 2006

Amount of Bond - $2,500,000

Principal Due August 1

. FISCAL INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL TOTAL
YEAR PUE AUG 1 DUE FEB 1 INTEREST AMOUNT REQUIREMENT
1112 $ 51,218 $ 49418 3 100,636 $ 120,000 3 220,636
12-13 49417 47,468 96,885 130,000 226,885
13-14 47 467 45,443 92,910 135,000 227,910
14-15 45,442 43,268 88,710 145,000 233,710
15-18 43,267 40,830 84,097 150,000 234,097
16-17 40,830 38,030 78,860 160,000 238,860
17-18 38,030 34,843 72,873 170,000 242 873
18-19 34,842 31,243 _ 66,085 180,000 246,085
19-20 31,242 27,300 58,642 190,000 248,542
20-21 27,300 23,000 50,300 200,000 250,300
21-22 23,000 17,750 40,750 210,000 250,750
22-23 17,750 12,125 29,875 225,000 254,875
23-24 12,128 6,250 18,376 235,000 253,375
24-26 6,250 - 6,250 250,000 256,250

$ 468,180 $ 416,968 $ 885,148 $ 2,500,000 $ 3,385,148

61~



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
WATER AND SEWER FUND
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE

AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

South Huron Valley Utility Authority

Sewer System Plant Acquisition Bonds

Dated September 29, 1998

Amount Issued - $3,271,516; Flat Rock Share of $26,615,000
Principal Due October 1

FISCAL INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL TOTAL
YEAR DUE OCT 1 DUE APR 1 INTEREST AMOUNT REQUIREMENT
11-12 $ 20179 $ 18353 % 38532  $ 162,254 200,786
1213 18,353 16,487 34,840 165,942 200,782
13-14 16,487 14,585 31,072 168,015 200,087
14-15 14,585 12,642 27,227 172,702 199,929
15-16 12,642 10,651 23,293 177,005 200,298
16-17 10,651 8,618 19,269 180,692 199,961
17-18 8,618 6,537 15,165 184,995 200,150
18-19 6,537 4,407 10,944 189,297 200,241
19-20 4,407 2,229 6,636 193,599 200,235
20-21 2,229 - 2,229 198,164 200,393

$ 114,688 $ 94,509 $ 208,197 $ 1,793,665 $ 2,002,862

60-



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
WATER AND SEWER FUND
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE

AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

South Huron Valley Utility Authority

2004 Sewer System Plant Expansion

Amount Issued - $2,352,760; Flat Rock Share of $9,220,000
Principal Due April 1

FISCAL INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL TOTAL
YEAR DUE AUG 1 DUE FEB 1 INTEREST ANOUNT REQUIREMENT
11-12 $ 19,711 $ 19711 $ 36,422 $ 105800 $ 145,322
12-13 18,587 18,587 37,174 108,451 145,625
13-14 17,434 17,434 34,868 411,003 145,871
14-15 16,254 16,254 32,608 113,555 146,083
16-16 15,048 15,048 30,096 118,107 146,203
16-17 13,814 13,814 27,628 117,383 145,011
17-18 12,667 12,567 25,134 119,936 145,069
18-19 11,293 11,293 22,586 122,486 145,072
18-20 9,904 9,994 19,988 126,314 - 146,302
20-21 8,649 8,649 17,298 128,866 146,164
2122 7,280 7,280 14,560 131,418 145,978
22-23 5,883 5,883 11,766 133,970 145,736
23-24 4,460 4,460 8,520 136,521 145,441
24-25 3,010 3,010 6,020 140,349 146,369
25-26 1,518 1,518 3,036 142,901 145,937

$ 165,502 § 165,602 $ 331,004 $ 1,855,158 $ 2,186,163




CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
WATER AND SEWER FUND
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011
South Huron Valley Utility Authority
2010 Sewer System Improvements

Amount Issued - $409,360; Flat Rock Share of $1,600,000
Principal Due May 1

FISCAL INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL TOTAL

YEAR DUE NOV 1 DUE MAY 1 INTEREST AMOUNT REQUIREMENT
11-12 § 11,156 $ 11,156 3 22,312 $ 14,072 $ 36,384
12-13 10,875 10,875 21,760 15,351 37,101
13-14 10,606 10,606 21,212 15,351 36,563
14-15 10,337 10,337 20,674 16,630 37,304
15-16 10,005 10,005 20,010 16,630 36,640
16-17 ‘ 9,564 9,664 19,128 17,910 37,038
17-18 9,089 9,089 18,178 17.910 36,088
18-19 8,616 8,615 17,230 19,189 36,419
19-20 8,106 8,106 16,212 19,189 35,401
20-21 7,598 7,698 15,196 21,747 36,943
21-22 7,021 7,021 14,042 20,468 34,510
22-23 6,479 6,479 12,958 21,747 34,705
23-24 5,003 5,903 11,806 23,027 34,833
24-25 5,293 5,293 10,586 24,306 34,892
25-26 4,648 4,648 9,296 24,306 33,602
26-27 3,874 3,874 7,748 25,585 33,333
27-28 3,058 3,068 6,116 29,423 35,539
28-29 2120 2,120 4,240 31,981 36,221
29-30 1,101 1,102 2,203 34,538 36,741

$ 135448 $ 135449 $ 270,897 $ 409,360 $ 680,257




CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
WATER AND SEWER FUND
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE

AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

South Huron Valley Utility Authority

2011 Sewer System [Improvements

~ Amount Issued - $557,073; Flat Rock Share of $3,310,000
Principal Due April 1

FISCAL INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL PRINCIPAL

TOTAL

YEAR DUE QCT 1 DUE APR 1 INTEREST AMOUNT REQUIREMENT
11-12 $ 3,763 5 6,963 $ 10,716 $ 21,879 $ 32,505
1213 6,690 6,690 13,380 21,879 35,258
13-14 6,416 6,416 12,832 22,721 35,6853
14-15 6,133 6,132 12,265 23,562 35,827
15-16 5,838 ~ 5,838 11,676 24,404 36,080
16-17 5,533 5533 11,066 24,404 35,470
17-18 5,228 5,228 10,466 25,245 35,701
18-19 4,912 4,912 9,824 26,087 35,911
18-20 4,586 4,586 9,172 26,928 36,100
20-21 4,250 4,250 8,500 26,928 35,428
2122 3,913 3913 7,826 27,770 35,606
22-23 3,566 3,566 7,132 28,611 35,743
23-24 3,208 3,208 6,416 29,453 35,869
24-25 2,840 2,840 5,680 30,294 35,974
25-26 2,461 2,461 4,922 31,136 36,058
26-27 2,072 2,072 4,144 31,977 36,121
2728 1,672 1,672 3,344 32,819 36,163
28-29 1,262 1,262 2,524 32,819 35,343
29-30 862 852 1,704 33,660 35,364
30-31 431 434 865 34,497 35,362

$ 75616 $ 78,828 3 154,444 $ 557073 3 711,617




CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN

GENERAL OBLIGATION EQUIPMENT LOANS PAYABLE

AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

Equipment Loan

Dated September 26, 2006
Amount of Loan - $40,375
Principal Due; October 1

FISCAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL
YEAR DUE ANNUALLY AMOUNT REQUIREMENT
11-12 $ 518 $ 9,009 $ 9,627

Equipment Loan

Dated December 10, 2009
Amount of Loan - $334,000
Principat Due: December 15

FISCAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL
YEAR DUE_ ANNUALLY AMOUNT REQUIREMENT
11-12 $ 10453 $ 66,800 $ 77,253
12-13 7,467 66,800 74,267
13-14 4,480 66,800 71,280
14-15 1,493 66,796 68,289

$ 23,803 § 267,196 $ 291,089

Equipment Loan

Dated September 20, 2010

Amount of Loan - $34,819

Monthly Principal and Interest Installments of $686

FISCAL : INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL
YEAR DUE ANNUALLY  AMOUNT REQUIREMENT
11-12 $ 1859 § 6373  § 8,232
12-13 1,417 6,815 8,232
13-14 ' 043 7,289 8,232
14-15 433 7,799 8,232
15-16 24 2,034 2,058

$ 4676 §_ 30310  $ 34,986

..66..



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
GENERAL OBLIGATION TAX SETTLEMENT PAYAELE
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011
Auto Alltance, Inc.
Refundable 2008 Real and Personal Property Tax

Dated January, 2011
Amount of Settlement - $559,630 (Non-nterest Bearing)

Due August 31 :

FISCAL TOTAL
YEAR : REQUIREMENT
11-12 $ 55,963
12-13 _ 55,963
13-14 55,863
14-15 55,963
15-16 55,963
186-17 55,963
17-18 ' 55,963
18-19 55,963
19-20 55,963
20-21 55,963

$ 559,630

67-



CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
TAX LEVIES iN MILLAGE
LAST TWENTY-FIVE YEARS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

MUNICIPAL
FISCAL GENERAL BUILDING  LIBRARY SEWER  HISTORICAL  TOTAL
YEAR FUND FUND FUND DEBT DISTRICT  MILLAGE
1987 11.50 2.25 - 4,00 - 17.75
1988 11.50 2.20 - 4.05 - 17.75
1989 15.50 2.25 - - - 17.75
1990 15.50 1.75 - - . 17.25
1991 15.26 1.65 - - - 16.90
1992 14.48 2.10 - - - 16.58
1993 14,30 2.00 - - - 16.30
1994 13.14 - - 2.86 - 16.00
1995 13.14 - - 2.86 - 16.00
1996 13.15 - - 2.85 - 16.00
1997 13.15 - 1.00 2,85 - 17.00
1998 13.15 - 1.00 2.85 - 17.00
1999 13.15 - 1.00 2.85 - 17.00
2000 13.15 - 1.00 2.85 - 17.00
2001 16.25 - 1.00 - - 17.25
2002 16.00 - 1.00 - 0.25 17.25
2003 16.00 - 1.00 - 0.25 17.25
2004 16.00 - 1.00 - 0.25 17.25
2005 16.00 - 1.00 - 0.25 17.25
2006 16.00 - 1.00 - 0.25 17.25
2007 16.00 - 1.00 - 0.25 17.25
2008 16.00 - 1.00 - 0.25 17.25
2009 16.00 - 1.00 . 0.25 17:25
2010 16.00 - 1.00 - 0.25 17.25
2011 16.00 - 1.00 - 0.25 17.25
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“  CITY OF FLAT ROCK, MICHIGAN
WATER AND SEWER RATES
LAST TWENTY-FIVE YEARS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FISCAL RESIDENTIAL NON-RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL INDUSTRIAL

YEAR RATE RATE RATE RATE

1987 4,29 4.29 - -
1988 429 4.29 - -
1989 4.29 4.29 - -
1990 4.01 4,01 - -
1991 4.01 4.01 - .
1092 4.01 4.01 - -
1993 4.01 4.01 . .
1094 4.00 4,00 - -
1995 4.00 4.00 - .
1996 4,00 4.00 - -
1997 4.00 4.00 - -
1998 4.00 4,50 - -
1999 4.00 4.50 - -
2000 4.00 4.50 - ' -
2001 3.60 4.25 - .
2002 4.00 4,50 - .
2003 4.00 4.50 - -
2004 4.00 4.50 - .
2005 4,00 4.50 . .
2006 4.50 5.00 - -
2007 450 5.00 - .
2008 450 5.00 - -
2009 5.00 - 6.50 6.75
2010 5.00 - 6.50 6.75
2011 5.00 - 6.50 .75
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H U NGE QEOR D& CO Certified Public Accountants

A Professional Corporation

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUBITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Flat Rock, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type aclivities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Flat Rock, Michigan as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which coliectively comprise the City of Flat Rock, Michigan's
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2011. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller Genetal of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and -performing our audit, we considered the City of Flat Rock, Michigan's internal control
gver financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Flat Rock, Michigan’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Flat Rock, Michigan’s internal control
over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis.

Qur consideration of internal contrel over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

-70-
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To the Honorable Mayor and

Members of the City Council
City of Flat Rock, Michigan
Page 2

Compiiance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reascnable assurance about whether the City of Flat Rock, Michigan's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The resulis of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reporied under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to the management of the City of Flat Rock, Michigan, In a
separate letter dated December 12, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within
the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

THnpiged e

Southgate, Michigan
December 12, 2011

HUNGERFORDE,CO
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Telephone 734-782-3277

ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS NEW BUSINESS - B |Facsimile 734-782-2424
REGULAR COUNCIL MTG. |

David P. Grunow : 12-19-11 J

Matthew A. Zick, Of Counsel

December 9, 2011

Mayor and Council
City of Flat Rock
25500 Gibraltar Road
Flat Rock, MI 48134

Re: Amendment to Zoning Ordinance/Bed and Breakfast Uses
Our File No. 11-5619

Dear Mayor and Council:

Enclosed please find proposed ordinance which has been recommended for approval by the Planning
Commission. The ordinance submitted to my office for review has been extensively rewritten to
place the ordinance in proper form, correct certain inconsistencies, and to provide procedures
consistent with the zoning ordinance for the revocation of a permit issued for the establishment of
a bed and breakfast.

Again, the ordinance is presented to Council for its consideration.

Very truly yours,

GRUNQW & ASSOCIATES piLC

-7
A7

B ) \‘5\’.
David P. Grunow, City Attorney

DPG/Irt
Enclosure
ce: John R. Jackson, AICP, McKenna Associates (w/copy enclosed)
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26342 Gibraltar Road
Flat Rock , MI 48134-1597

734-782-3277
Fax 734-782-2424

CITY OF FLAT ROCK
WAYNE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Ordinance No.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE FOR
THE CITY OF FLAT ROCK BY AMENDING SECTIONS 1.03,
DEFINITIONS; 6.03, SITE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR
RESIDENTIAL USES; AND 14.02(B), SPECIAL LAND USES, TO
PROVIDE FOR THE OPERATION OF BED AND BREAKFAST
ESTABLISHMENTS AS A PERMITTED USE AFTER SPECIAL
APPROVAL IN THE C-2, CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT.

THE CITY OF FLLAT ROCK ORDAINS:

SECTION L. Short Title. This Ordinance shall be known as and may be referred to as the “2011
Bed and Breakfast Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance.”

SECTION II. Purpose. The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Zoning Ordinance fo
provide for the operation of Bed and Breakfast Establishments as a permitted use after special
approval in the C-2, Central Business District.

SECTION III. Amendment to Article 1.00. The City of Flat Rock Zoning Ordinance is hereby
amended at Article 1.00, “Rules of Construction and Definitions,” Section 1.03, “Definitions,” to
+ include the following definition:

“BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENT:: A single-family dwelling owned
and occupied by a person renting out not more than four rooms for compensation
who serves breakfasts at no extra cost to persons who do not stay for more than 14
consecutive days.”

SECTION 1IV: Amendment to Section 14.02(B). The City of Fiat Rock Zoning Ordinance is
hereby amended at Article 14.00, “C-2, Central Business District,” Section 14.02(B), “Special Land
Uses,” by adding a Subsection, which Subsection shall be designated as Subsection 14.02(B)(13)
and shall read:

“13. Bed and breakfast establishments, subject to the conditions of Section
6.02(D).”

SECTION V: Amendment to Section 6.03. The City of Flat Rock Zoning Ordinance is hereby
amended at Article 6.00, “Site Development Standards Applicable to Specific Uses,” Section 6.03,




LAW CFFICES

RUNOW
SSOCIATES euc

26342 Gibraltar Road
Flat Rock , MI 48134-1397

734-782-32717
Fax 7134-782-2424

“Site Development Standards for Residential Uses,” by adding Subsection (D), “Bed and Breakfast
Establishments,” which shall be designated as Subsection 6.03(D), to read as follows:

“D. BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS

1. Sufficient off-street parking shall be provided at the rate of two (2)
parking spaces plus one (1) space per double occupied room.

2. No retail or other sales shall be permitted unless they are clearly
incidental and directly related to the conduct of the bed and breakfast,
including but not limited to the sale of goods directly related to the
history of the City or locally produced items.

3. One non-illuminated wall sign may be erected on the property, not to
exceed six (6) square feet in size. The sign shall compliment the
nature of the use; i.e. historic structures should have an historic style

sign.

4, No alteration to the exterior of the residential dwelling, accessory
building, or yard that alters the residential character of the premises
is permissible.

5. No vehicle used in the conduct of the bed and breakfast may be
parked, kept, or otherwise be present at the premises, other than such
as are normally suitable for use for domestic or household purposes.

6. Rooms utilized for sleeping shall be part of the primary residential
structure and shall not have been specifically constructed for rental

purposes.

7. Rooms utilized for sleeping shall have no direct access to the outside.

8. Not more than four (4) sleeping rooms may be used for such
purposes.

9. The owner, proprietor, or manager is required to occupy the property.

10.  There shall be no separate or additional kitchen facility for the guests.
11. Bed and Breakfast facilities are intended as short-term
accommodations. Long-term occupancy of more than two weeks is

prohibited.

12.  Meals shall be served only to residents and overnight guests.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

No exterior lighting, except as normally permitted for a typical single
family use, shall be permitted.

A City business license is required.

A bed and breakfast must comply with all other provisions of the
zoning district in which it is located and must comply with all other
ordinances of the City. Additionally, a bed and breakfast is subject
to all other applicable local, county, state and federal regulations.

Any permit issued is nontransferable.

Any other conditions deemed essential and reasonable by the
Planning Commission to protect the public health, safety and welfare,
in accordance with the standards set forth in Section 24.03.

(a) A permit shall be obtained from the Building Official, or his or
her designee. Such permit shall be revoked should the bed and
breakfast at any time not meet the above conditions. Any permit to
allow a bed and breakfast shall be issued for a period not to exceed

- two (2) years. Further, any permit shall become null and void after

one (1) year from the date such permit is granted unless the bed and
breakfast has been established and is operating.

(b) The use is subject to review at any time and may be revoked for
cause by the Building Official. The term “cause” shall include, but
not be limited to, operating the bed and breakfast in an unlawful
manner or in such a manner as to constitute the maintenance of a
nuisance upon or in connection with the bed and breakfast. For
purposes of this Section, “nuisance™ shall be given the normal and
customary meaning, and shall include, but not be limited to, the
following:

(1) Existing violations of building, electrical, mechanical,
plumbing, zoning, health, fire or other applicable
regulatory codes.

(ii) A pattern or practice of patron conduct which is in
violation of the law and/or interferes with the health,
safety and welfare of other persons in the area.

(iily ~ Failure after receiving notice from the City to
maintain the grounds and exterior of the bed and
breakfast, including frequent litter, debris or refuse
blowing or being deposited upon adjoining properties.
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19.

(iv)  Failure by the owner and/or operator to permit the
reasonable inspection of the bed and breakfast by the
City’s employees or agents in connection with the
enforcement of this section.”

(¢) Upon receipt of evidence of possible violation, the Building
Official shall make a determination whether there is reasonable cause
to suspect the operation or use is in violation. The Building Official
may initiate an official investigation in order to make such a
determination.

If, after appropriate investigation, the Building Official determines
that a violation does exist, the Building Official shall take or cause to
be taken lawful action as provided by the Zoning Ordinance to
eliminate such violation. The owners or operators of the facility
deemed responsible shall be given written notice of the violation.
The Building Official shall take appropriate action in accordance with
the owner or operator’s response to the notice of violation.
Appropriate action includes the following:

(a) Correction of Violation within Time Limit. If the alleged
violation is corrected within the specified time limit, even if
there is no reply to the notice, the Building Official shall note
“Violation Corrected” on the City’s copy of the notice, and
the notice shall be retained on file. If necessary, the Building
Official may take other action as may be warranted by the
circumstances of the case, pursuant to the regulations in this
and other ordinances.

(b) Violation Not Corrected and No Reply from Owner or
Operator. [f there is no reply from the owner or operator
within the specified time limits, and the alleged violation is
not corrected in accordance with the regulations set forth in
this ordinance, then the Building Official shall take such
action as may be warranted to correct the violation.

(©) Reply Requesting Extension of Time. Ifa reply is received
within the specified time limit indicating that an alleged
violation will be corrected in accordance with the regulations
set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, but that more time is
required than was granted by the original notice, the Building
Official may grant an extension if*

(i) The Building Official deems that such extension is
warranted because of the circumstances in the case,
and
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(iiy  The Building Official determines that such extension
will not cause imminent peril to life, health, or

property.

20.  Continued Violation. If, after the conclusion of the time period
granted for compliance, the Building Official finds that the violation
still exists, the permit previously issued shall be void and the City
shall initiate appropriate legal action, including the possible pursuing
of remedies in an appropriate court of law.

21.  Appeals. Action taken by the Building Official pursuant to the
procedures outlined in this Subsection may be appealed to the Zoning
Board of Appeals within thirty (30) days following said action. Inthe
absence of such appeal, the Building Official’s determination shall be
final.”

SECTION V1. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances, Code of the City of Flat Rock, or parts
of the Code of the City of Flat Rock, not consistent herewith are hereby repealed.

SECTION VII. This ordinance shall be published in the News Herald newspaper as required by
Charter on the day of ‘ , 2011, but in no event shall be effective
earlier than ten (10) days after enactment.

Jonathan D. Dropiewski, Mayor

Lorene Butski, City Clerk

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the ordinance adopted by the Council of the City
of Flat Rock at a meeting thereof on , 2011, the original of which
proceedings is on file in my office.

Lorene Butski, City Clerk
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Flat Rock , Michigan 48134-1567
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David P. Grunow 12-19-11
Matthew A. Zick, Of Counsel

ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS

December 14, 2011

Mayor and Council.
City of Flat Rock
25500 Gibraltar Road
Flat Rock, MI 48134

Re:  Amendment to Bylaws of Tax Increment Finance Authority
Our File No. 11-5624

Dear Mayor and Council:

Atits regularmeeting of November 22, 2011, the Tax Increment Finance Authority by an affirmative
vote of the majority of the members of its Board approved the amendment of its Bylaws to provide
for its regular meetings to be held quarterly, in January, April, July, and October of each year.

In accordance with statute and Article XII of the Authority’s Bylaws, an amendment to the Bylaws
is subject to the approval of the City Council. If acceptable, please authorize the Clerk to affix her
signature to the resolution amending the Bylaws, a copy being enclosed.

Of course, if you have any questions please feel free to contact me.

Very truly yours,

ASSOCIATES rLLC

Yavid P. Grunow, CitymAttomey

DPG/Irt
Enclosure



CITY OF FLAT ROCK
TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

WAYNE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
RESOLUTION TO CHANGE MEETING DATES

At aregular meeting of the Board of the City of Flat Rock Tax Increment Finance Authority,
Wayne County, Michigan, held in the Municipal Building of said City, on the 22nd day of

November, 2011, at 7:30 p.m.

PRESENT: John Fiorelli, Chairperson; Tom Havera, Vice-Chairperson; Patricia
L. Simeck, Secretary; Debra Lambrix, Treasurer; and Commissioner
Louis D. Stoney.

ABSENT: Commissioner William Neal.
MOTION BY: Debra Lambrix, Treasurer.
SUPPORTED BY: Patricia L. Simeck, Secretary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that subject to approval of the Flat Rock City
E Council, the Bylaws of the City of Flat Rock Tax Increment Finance Authority shall be amended by
| amending Sections 1 and 2 of Article IV to read as follows:

Section 1. Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the Board shall be held

on the fourth Tuesday in July of each year at the hour of 7:30 p.m., at the Authority’s
principal office.

LAW OFFICES Section 2. Regular Meetings. The regular meetings of the Board shall be
RUNOW held quarterly on the fourth Tuesday of the months of January, April, July, and
SSOCIATES mic October of each year, at 7:30 p.m., at the Authority’s principal office. In the event
26342 Gibraltar Koad a regular meeting shall fall on a holiday, the meeting shall be held on the following

Flat Rock , MI 48134-1557

S regular business day. Any meeting cancelled for lack of quorum shall be rescheduled

Fax 734-782-2424

-1-
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on the regular meeting day of the quarterly month following in which a regular
meeting is scheduled to be held.

AYES:

NAYS:

John Fiorelli, Chairperson

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
)ss.
COUNTY OF WAYNE )
1, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Secretary of the City of Flat Rock Tax
Increment Finance Authority, Wayne County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true

and complete copy of proceedings taken by the Board of the City of Flat Rock Tax Increment

Finance Authority, at a regular meeting held on the 22nd day of November, 2011.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, [ have hereunto set my official signature, this ' day
of , 2011.

Patricia L. Simeck, Secretary

; Approved by the City Council at a regular

meeting held on December 19, 2011.

Lorene Butski, City Clerk
City of Flat Rock




Chief William Vack NEW BUSINESS -D
Flat Rock Fire Department REGULAR COUNCIL MTG.

25500 Gibraltar Rd 12-19-11

Flat Rock, MI 48134

To: Mayor and Council
From: Chief Vack\z&/’y
Subject: Permission to Purchase and Permission to Bid

Date: December 15, 2011

T am requesting to purchase the following items that are part of our most
current AFG (Assistance to Firefighters Grant). All of the items in the first
group are part of a State of Michigan bid therefore we do not have to bid
them. The items in the second group are all from a manufacturer’s single
source distributor for the area thus bidding would not be beneficial.

Funding for this project will be 95% from AFG federal grant funds and the
balance will be from the general fund.

Qty Model Cost

1 MTR 3000 Base Station Radio $7.024.00
2 MC 2000 Remote Encoder $1,024.00
1 Setup, delivery and installation $1.200.00

Total $10,272.00

Grant Funding $9,758.00
City share  $ 514.00

The above equipment will be purchased through our local radio service
company, Herkimer Radio Service from Monroe.

Phone: 734-789-2338 Fax: 734-783-0316



The items listed below will be purchased from Apollo Fire Equipment Co,
Romeo, MI. This is the sole source dealer for Hurst Jaws of Life products in
the state of Michigan.

Qty Model Cost

1 ML-28 Spreader $7,800.00
1 ML-4G-SI Power Unit $7.800.00
1 Mini Cutter Kit $2.,000.00
1 Quick Kick Ram Support $ 650.00
2 100° Hose @ $1,000 $2,000.00
2 30" Hose @ $575 $1.150.00

Total $21,400.00

Grant Funding $17,812.00
City share  $ 3,588.00

T am also requesting permission to bid for the following equipment that is
also part of the same grant; detailed specifications will be available to the
Clerks Office:

Item

g

AEDs for Fire Vehicles

Rescue 42 Tele Crib Strat/Tripod Kit CTC-6005
Strut Jack CTC-503

The Shark — Standard SRK-S

The Shark — Large SRK-L

O-Plate Junior OJR

Jack Mate — Lift Jack Accessory IM-R42-S
Spike Foot CTC-511

Spare Yellow Strut Pin CTC-515

Spare Base Pin CTC-516

Pickets CTC-520

N T N S R o N N e



CORRESPONDENCE - A
REGULAR COUNCIL MTG.
12-19-11

December 13, 2011
Dear Mayor Dropiewski and Council Members,

| was appointed to the Historical Commission to
replace Winnie Oestrike Hamilton, at her request.
| have enjoyed being part of the commission and
seeing all the progress on the restoration of the
Smith Hotel and Langs-Wagar Home.

| regret that | must submit my resignation from
the Historic Commission. 1 still have one year left
on the commission but am unable to complete my
term at this time.

Sincerely,

20/ 5%_7*7/ A7

Walter Masson
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